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APPEARANCES : 

SUZANNE SUMMERLIN , 1311 - B Paul Russel 1 Road, Sui te  

201, Tallahassee, F lo r ida  32301, appearing on behal f  o f  I D S  

Tel ecom, LLC . 
DOUGLASS R. LACKEY, BellSouth Telecommunications, 

Inc. ,  c/o Nancy Sims, 150 South Monroe Street,  Sui te  400, 

T a l  1 ahassee, F lo r ida  32301, appearing on behal f  o f  Bel lSouth 

Telecommunications, Inc.  

MARY ANNE HELTON , F1 o r i  da Pub1 i c Service Commi ss i  on, 
D i  v i  s i  on o f  Legal Servi ces , 2540 Shumard Oak Boul evard, 

Tallahassee, F lo r ida  32399-0870, appearing on behal f  o f  the  

Commission S t a f f .  

ALSO PRESENT : 

MICHAEL NOSHAY, I D S  Telecom, L.L.C. 
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P R O C E E D I N G S  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: C a l l  the prehearing conference 

to order. Could I have the not ice read, please. 

MS. HELTON: Pursuant t o  not ice published i n  the FAW 

3n August the  24th, 2001, t h i s  prehearing conference f o r  Docket 

lumber 010740-TP was set  f o r  t h i s  t ime and place. The purpose 

)f the prehearing conference i s  more f u l l y  set  f o r t h  i n  the 

l o t i  ce . 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Take appearances. 

MR. LACKEY: Good morning, Mr. Chairman. My name i s  

loug Lackey, and I ' m  an at torney here appearing on behal f  o f  

3el lSouth Telecommunications, Inc. 

MS. SUMMERLIN : Good morni ng , Commi s s i  oner Deason . 
I ' m' Suzanne Summer1 i n representi  ng I D S  Tel ecom. 

MS. HELTON: And I ' m  Mary Anne Helton representing 

the Commission S t a f f .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Helton, do we have 

prel iminary matters? 

MS. HELTON: Yes, s i r .  Based on my understanding, we 

have three outstanding motions: A motion t o  compel f i l e d  by 

BellSouth, a motion t o  defer an ssue t o  the OSS part  o f  the 

271 proceeding by BellSouth, and a motion t o  f i l e  supplemental 

rebut ta l  testimony also by BellSouth. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: A1 1 three motions have been 

f i  1 ed by Bel 1 South? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MS. HELTON: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Mr. Lackey, do you wish 

t o  - -  any par t i cu la r  order you wish t o  address these motions? 

MR. LACKEY: I th ink  tha t  the easiest t h i n g  t o  do i s  

t o  t a l k  about the discovery f i r s t  and then the motion f o r  

supplemental rebuttal  testimony and, f i n a l l y ,  the OSS issue. 

The OSS issue i s  s i m i l a r  t o  the request we made t o  move the 

issues dealing w i th  anticompetit ive issues t o  the docket 

invo lv ing  anticompetit ive issues, the same basic theory. 

shouldn't  take 30 seconds t o  discuss tha t .  

It 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Well, then please 

proceed w t h  your motion t o  compel. 

MR. LACKEY: Thank you. Basical ly,  we f i l e d  

discovery, I th ink,  on August 1 s t  asking I D S  t o  respond t o  

103 in ter rogator ies and 20 requests f o r  production o f  

documents. Almost a l l  o f  them re la ted  d i r e c t l y  t o  the  p r e f i l e d  

d i r e c t  testimony because t h a t ' s  what we had a t  the  time. 

Indeed, most o f  them went t o  spec i f i c  pages and l i n e  numbers 

and asked f o r  information re la ted  t o  what was said on those 

pages i n  pa r t i cu la r .  The answers were due on the 20th, the day 

our testimony was o r i g i n a l l y  due. You had granted us an ext ra 

deek t o  f i l e  rebut ta l  testimony, u n t i l  August 27th, i n  order t o  

have the discovery i n  hand before we f i l e d  t h a t  rebut ta l .  

On the 20th, we received some responses t o  the 

discovery. We promptly f i l e d  a motion t o  compel. Thereafter, 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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iou issued an order - - 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: And t h i s  was f i l e d  on the 22nd; 

i s  t h a t  correct? 

MR. LACKEY: I ' m  sorry? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Was t h i s  - -  t h i s  was f i l e d  on 

the 22nd? 

MR. LACKEY: The motion? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Yes. 

MR. LACKEY: 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Very we1 1 . 
MR. LACKEY: And I w i l l  say t h a t  on the  23rd and 

I bel ieve i t  was f i l e d  on the  22nd, yes. 

?4th, I D S  attempted t o  supplement the answers they had given 

JS.  A t  l eas t  48 o f  the  answers they gave us simply sa id they 

lad no resources. Another 23 o f  the responses they gave us t o  

the in te r rogator ies  s i m i l a r l y  said - -  w e l l ,  they gave us a 

p a r t i a l  answer bu t  no t  a complete answer. 

You issued an order al lowing them u n t i l  September 6 th  

t o  f i l e  a complete answers t o  the questions we posed. I would 

also note t h a t  no object ions were f i l e d  t o  any o f  the 

in ter rogator ies o r  the  requests f o r  production o f  documents the  

tenth day a f t e r  service as i s  required by your other prehearing 

order. 

We received on Thursday fu r the r  responses t o  the  

discovery. A t  t h i s  po in t ,  we s t i l l  have 13 in te r rogator ies  f o r  

which there i s  no answer. The f i r s t  answer was, "No 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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resources. 

23rd o r  the 24th said, "No fur ther  information." And the l a s t  

one f i l e d  on September 26th said, "No fu r ther  information." We 

have an addit ional ten in ter rogator ies - -  l e t ' s  me make sure 

I ' v e  got the numbers r i g h t  - -  we have an addi t ional  ten 

in ter rogator ies t h a t  were p a r t i a l l y  complete a t  the time o f  

your f i r s t  order f o r  which there was no fu r ther  answer; t h a t  

i s ,  again, i t  was simply, "No fu r ther  information," "No fu r ther  

information." So a t  t h i s  po int ,  there are 23 o f  the 

in ter rogator ies f o r  which there i s  no answer d i f f e r e n t  than the 

answer t h a t  was given when you ru led  the f i r s t  t ime tha t  they 

vere i ncompl ete. 

The second suppl emental answer f i  1 ed on e i the r  the 

Now, i n  addit ion, there are a number o f  

interrogator ies,  and I can go through them one by one a t  some 

point  i f  you'd l i k e ,  where there was some supplemental answer 

given t h a t  was e i the r  s t i l l  incomplete o r  nonresponsive. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: This i s  i n  addi t ion t o  the 23 

you j u s t  described? 

MR. LACKEY: Yes. The f i r s t  13 I described, there 's  

nothing, no resources, and then the second, I ' m  sorry, the 

f i r s t  attempt t o  supplement said, "No fu r ther  information. I' 

The second attempt t o  supplement said, "No fu r ther  

information. 'I 

Then we have another 16 f o r  which we have p a r t i a l  

answers tha t  are incomplete o r  nonresponsive, and I can go 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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;hrough those i f  you would l i k e .  So, bas ica l ly ,  we've got 39 

)ut  o f  the 103 in ter rogator ies f o r  which we e i t h e r  have no 

inswer or  f o r  which we have incomplete or  nonresponsive 

inswers. 

I n  addi t ion,  we have 8 o f  20 PODS f o r  which we s t i l l  

lave no responsive information. Basical ly,  our pos i t i on  i s ,  i s  

;hat obviously t h i s  i s  a p r e t t y  serious matter. They are 

isking f o r  a refund o f  40 percent o f  what they paid us over the 

last  two years. This i s  a high p r o f i l e  case. The W a l l  St reet  

Journal has had a r t i c l e s  about it. I t ' s  a serious matter. 

We have asked questions t h a t  r e l a t e  d i r e c t l y  t o  the  

:estimony, and I ' d  be happy t o  give you a couple o f  examples 

:hat I th ink  are per t inent .  We asked them f o r  - -  f o r  instance, 

:hey said they po l l ed  t h e i r  customers i n  the testimony. They 

;aid they po l led  t h e i r  customers, and t h e i r  customers t o l d  them 

something about what we had done. We sent them an 

interrogatory and said, t e l l  us who the  customers are t h a t  you 

lo l led ;  nothing. 

Now, i t  ' s absol u te l  y i nconceivabl e t h a t  they coul d 

lave done a survey o f  t h e i r  customers, a p o l l  o f  t h e i r  

xstomers, and not have any documents i nd i ca t i ng  who the 

xstomers were, who they ca l led,  who ca l l ed  them o r  anyth 

)ut  we've got nothing. And i t  j u s t  goes on and on and on 

that. 

ng 9 

l i k e  

And they asked f o r  t h i s  hearing t o  be expedited, and 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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I understand that. And the discovery time was shortened, and I 
understand that. But there's a matter of fundamental fairness 
here. We're being required to defend ourselves against some 
pretty egregious allegations. They've basically accused us of 
lying, cheating, and stealing. And we're entitled to know what 
the evidence is that they're going to rely on in addressing 
that in a hearing, and they are not telling us. 

Now, some of the questions that we haven't raised 
again, they answered some of them, some of the questions they 
simply said, we don't have any documents related to this, and 
that's fine. I can understand that. But when they tell me 
they don't have the resources and then they tell me they don't 
have any further information twice, I don't think that's a 
responsive answer. I don't think that addresses - - or I don't 
think it responds to your order appropriately. 

Now, we've asked for the matter to be continued. We 
need this matter continued until they fully and adequately, and 
I'm not talking about adequate in my viewpoint, I'm talking 
about just adequately in a legal sense, respond to this 
discovery. And once they respond t o  the discovery, we ought 
then be afforded an opportunity to file rebuttal testimony ti 

to 

address the claims they are making against us. If you make us 
go to hearing on this, the way this case is postured now, we 
will not be given a fair opportunity to respond to the 
complaints they are making. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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irJhat I ' m  t a l k i n g  about, and 1 ' 1  

abso 

have 

I t ' s  

9 

the  39 one by one and show you 

be happy t o  do it. 

l i s t  here. I had my - -  I had the  l i s t  typed up t h i s  morning, 

and I ' v e  got the l i s t  o f  the  numbers. We can go through them 

i f  you 'd l i k e ,  but  t h a t ' s  bas i ca l l y  the essence o f  what I ' m  

going t o  say as we go through them. 

asked. 

was raised. We'l l  look a t  the  answer, and I bel ieve y o u ' l l  

f i n d  t h a t  i t ' s  j u s t  exac t ly  as I represented i t  t o  be. 

I have the 

I'll show you what we 

I'll take you t o  the  testimony and show you where i t  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We w i l l  not  go through t h a t  

l i s t  a t  the  present time. 

f i r s t .  We may do tha t  a t  a l a t e r  time. 

I w i l l  hear from Ms. Summerlin 

Ms. Summer1 i n .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: Yes, Commissioner Deason. I D S  

u t e l y  agrees w i th  Mr. Lackey t h a t  BellSouth i s  e n t i t l e d  t o  

the  evidence tha t  IDS i s  going t o  r e l y  on i n  i t s  case. 

I D S ' S  burden t o  put on i t s  case i n  f r o n t  o f  t h i s  

Commission, and I D S  w i l l  put  on i t s  case. BellSouth propounded 

20 requests f o r  production o f  documents and 103 

in te r rogator ies .  

One o f  those in te r roga to r ies ,  as I ' m  sure you ' re  

f a m i l  i a r ,  asked f o r  every document t h a t  supported every 

response t o  those in te r rogator ies .  What t h a t  amounts t o  i s  

103 in te r rogator ies  and 122 requests f o r  production o f  

documents. Yes, we were supposed t o  respond t o  t h a t  w i t h i n  20 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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days, and IDS absolutely made every effort possible t o  try t o  
respond. The reason IDS d id  not object t o  those requests by 

BellSouth i s  t h a t  IDS viewed those requests as perfectly 
appropriate. I f  there was documentation or there was an answer 
t o  be provided, i t  should be provided. 

IDS went t o  extreme lengths t o  try t o  do a good f a i t h  

effort t o  respond on the 20 th  of August which was the day t h a t  
your order establishing procedure required us t o  respond. We 
filed the response. 
most artful response, but  i t  basically said on many of the 
requests we d i d n ' t  have the human resources t o  be able t o  
gather the information t h a t  BellSouth was requesting a t  t h a t  
point . 

I t  d i d  say - -  i t  may not have been the 

We filed supplemental responses which we were 
preparing t o  f i l e  as quickly as possible regardless of any 

motion t o  compel being filed by BellSouth. We filed a 
supplemental response on August 23rd. We filed a supplemental 
response on August 24th.  BellSouth knew t h a t  every one of the 
key people involved i n  this case was located i n  Birmingham or 
At lan ta  on the days t h a t  these items were due, on the 2 0 t h  and 

for the entire - -  pretty much three days of the week prior t o  
t h a t  and two days, the 20th  and the 21st. 

And one might say t h a t  these are not  legally 
relevant, b u t  I t h i n k  they are legally relevant because I t h i n k  

t h a t  i t ' s  w i t h i n  your discretion t o  do justice i n  your role as 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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the Prehearing Officer. And it does matter that one company is 
a tiny company going up against a much larger company. And, 
yes, IDS did ask for this expedited hearing because it needs 
immediate relief, and it has no choice but to come to this 
Commission for that relief, and therefore, it was not objecting 
to an expedited discovery schedule. But the simple reality is, 
you cannot turn around on a dime and produce every document 
that your company has ever looked at or ever had anything to do 
with. 

Now, there are two supplemental responses, a 
first round of supplemental responses, and then one that we 
just filed on September 6th. This company has committed 
incredible effort to try and to produce everything that 
BellSouth asked for. There are questions that are responded to 
that there are no further documents or information to be 
produced. If IDS did not produce those documents, then 
obviously IDS can't rely on them to put on its case. And that 
is the simple fact. You can't make a company create something 
it doesn't have. I mean, even BellSouth, I can't ask them to 
produce something they don't have. And regardless of whether 
Mr. Lackey or BellSouth thinks that IDS'S case is going to be 
very good, that is not the deciding factor on whether this 
motion to compel #should be granted or whether this continuance 
should be granted. 

IDS has gone to extreme lengths to do everything 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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w i th in  i t s  power t o  put on i t s  case i n  a reasonable and f a i r  

way and t o  give BellSouth a reasonable and f a i r  response t o  i t s  

d i  scovery tha t  i t  deserves. Bel 1 South produced i t s  d i  scovery 

t o  I D S  l a s t  week, and we haven't had a chance ye t  t o  go through 

i t  t o  be able t o  re lay  t o  you the numerous s i tua t ions  where 

BellSouth said i n  i t s  discovery response t h a t  i t  d idn ' t  have 

the resources, or  i t  d i d n ' t  have any pa r t i cu la r  document o r  

whatever we might have asked f o r .  

provide today because I haven't had time t o  go through tha t .  

I don ' t  have t h a t  l i tany t o  

One reason I haven't had time i s  t h a t  although 

BellSouth has said they d i d n ' t  have the human resources, they 

dere able t o  f i l e  a lawsui t  against I D S  i n  At lanta,  Georgia i n  

federal court against IDS.  We were forced t o  go t o  two 

hearings i n  the l a s t  few days. And the reason I bring t h i s  up 

i s  because a t  some po in t  the Commission must take i n t o  account 

the f a c t  t h a t  some companies simply do no have the  resources t o  

turn around and do a case i n  the most precise fashion i n  every 

day a l l  the time. 

I w i l l  assert t o  you t h a t  I D S  has complied i n  good 

f a i t h  w i th  every requirement t h a t  the Commission has placed on 

it. And i f  a response has been made t h a t  t he re ' s  no fu r ther  

information, then t h a t  i s  the fac t .  And whether BellSouth 

l i k e s  tha t  o r  not, t h a t  i s  the case. And I agree t h a t  i f  we go 

t o  hearing, I D S  c a n ' t  come up w i th  a whole bunch o f  information 

that i t  d i d  not produce t o  BellSouth. That would not be 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

13 

appropriate, and i t  may simply be t h a t  BellSouth th inks the re ' s  

a whole bunch s t u f f  t ha t  there i s n ' t .  

I D S  has committed resources and has t r i e d  t o  do what 

your order grant ing the motion t o  compel said. We've t r i e d  t o  

comply w i th  the procedure order t o  s t a r t  wi th.  As I said, we 

were already t r y i n g  t o  provide responses before any motion t o  

compel was f i l e d  or  before you considered it. We were working 

d i l i g e n t l y  t o  t r y  t o  produce the informat ion.  

Now, the issue o f  t h i s  continuance. I f  any company 

here i s  a t  a disadvantage, i t ' s  IDS. And why i s  tha t?  The 

reason f o r  t ha t  i s  t h a t  i f  anybody knows what happened dur ing 

the l a s t  couple o f  years regarding whether BellSouth has given 

IDS operational support systems a t  p a r i t y  or  whether Bel lSouth 

has provided UNEs or  UNE-Ps t o  IDS a t  p a r i t y ,  i t ' s  BellSouth; 

i t ' s  not IDS. I D S  has i n f e r i o r  q u a l i t y  records simply by the 

very nature o f  the re la t ionship.  BellSouth knows every s ing le 

order tha t  comes i n t o  i t s  systems. It knows how they ' re  being 

processed. It knows whether i t  has ant icompet i t ive a c t i v i t i e s  

going on. It knows about i t s  telemarketing practices. It 

knows every s ing le t h i n g  tha t  i s  o f  any concern t o  i t  i n  terms 

o f  being able t o  put on i t s  defense. 

IDS i s  the company tha t  i s  disadvantaged because I D S  

has had t o  accept whatever records i t ' s  been able t o  keep t h a t  

a re  going t o ,  c l e a r l y  j u s t  by the very nature o f  the s i tua t ion ,  

not be as adequate and as completely and n i c e l y  kept as the 
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records tha t  BellSouth has. And I guess what I ' m  ge t t i ng  t o  

i s ,  we have t o  t a l k  about i n  terms o f  prejudice. A t  some po in t  

what the argument tha t  BellSouth i s  making t o  you today i s  t h a t  

i t ' s  being prejudiced by not ge t t i ng  the information. 

assert ing t o  you tha t  there i s  no prejudice here. 

BellSouth everything t h a t  i t  has. 

t h a t  i t  has. They w i l l  be deposing everybody we have, our f i v e  

witnesses, t h i s  next week, o r  I ' m  sorry, tomorrow, Wednesday, 

Thursday, and Friday. They w i l l  be deposing our f i v e  people 

t h a t  w i l l  be t e s t i f y i n g  i n  t h i s  case. They have had a 

tremendous e f f o r t  on our p a r t  t o  give them discovery, and they 

s tar ted out w i th  a heck o f  a l o t  more information about every 

issue i n  t h i s  case than I D S  w i l l  ever hope t o  have. And the  

idea t h a t  they are being prejudiced, i n  my view, i s  j u s t  

absolutely not reasonable f o r  t h i s  Commission t o  consider. 

I am 

I D S  has t o l d  

I t ' s  given i t  everything 

I n  terms o f  the continuance, I D S  came t o  t h i s  

Commission on May 11th bas i ca l l y  begging f o r  some help from the  

Commission. It i s  now September 10th. That 's four months 

l a t e r .  A l l  along, I D S  has t r i e d  t o  do what i t ' s  supposed t o  do 

t o  be able t o  get i n  f r o n t  o f  you and the r e s t  o f  the 

Commission t o  put on i t s  case. Whether i t ' s  as good a case as 

BellSouth th inks we've got o r  not,  I D S  wants the opportuni ty t o  

be i n  f r o n t  o f  the Commission on September 21st t o  be able t o  

get some r e l i e f  as soon as possible. To put t h i s  hearing o f f  

f o r  the reason t h a t  I D S  was not able t o  t u r n  around on a dime 
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i n  20 days and produce 122 requests f o r  production o f  documents 

and 103 in ter rogatory  responses t o  BellSouth who has only  now, 

on September 4th, had t o  produce any discovery t o  us. And par t  

o f  the reason - - i t ' s  not because we were s i t t i n g  back j u s t  

lol lygagging. The reason was, we were t r y i n g  t o  make - -  get 

the information we needed by deposing BellSouth employees t o  be 

able t o  gather the k ind o f  information t h a t  we c a n ' t  get any 

other way i n  an expedited schedule. But we d i d  submit 

discovery or  propound discovery t o  BellSouth, and they d i d  j u s t  

now have t o  f i l e  some responses on September 4th. But up u n t i l  

then, they were not required t o  do tha t .  

The bottom l i n e  here from I D S ' S  perspective i s  t h a t  

we've done everything conceivable t o  meet the burdens t h a t  the 

Commission places on a company t o  come before i t  i n  a complaint 

proceeding. 

i t  i s  an emergency need f o r  redress from the Commission. That 

doesn't mean t h a t  I D S  doesn't have t o  fo l low the  ru les,  and I ' m  

not saying tha t .  

done everything i t  could possibly do t o  put on a f a i r  case and 

t o  give the information t o  BellSouth t h a t  i t  i s  e n t i t l e d  t o .  

I D S  has said t o  you from the very beginning t h a t  

I ' m  saying I D S  has followed the ru les,  has 

And I would be the  f i r s t  t o  argue t o  you t h a t  BellSouth i s  

e n t i t l e d  t o  information t h a t ' s  relevant t o  the  case. But 

something doesn't  e x i s t ,  i t  i s  not appropriate t o  continue 

hearing or  t o  compel somebody t o  produce i t  i f  i t  does not 

ex is t .  
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summer1 i n ,  l e t  me i n t e r r u p t  

you a t  t h i s  po int .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I f  I understood Mr. Lackey 

cor rec t ly ,  he indicated t h a t  the basis o f  h i s  in ter rogator ies 

and production o f  documents was t o  t r y  t o  gain addi t ional  

information per ta in ing t o  al legat ions contained w i t h i n  your 

d i  r e c t  case. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Uh-huh. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And he indicates tha t  t h i s  

information i s  needed t o  prepare f o r  hearing, t o  bas i ca l l y  

understand the nature o f  the al legat ions and, I guess, t o  

determine i f  those al legat ions are substantiated and t o  know 

the basis o f  those al legat ions.  

I guess my question t o  you, do you agree w i t h  

Mr. Lackey t h a t  as o f  now there are 39 in ter rogator ies which 

have no answers or  j u s t  pa r t i a l  answers, and t h a t  8 o f  20 PODS 

have not  been provided? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: I don ' t  agree w i t h  him a t  a l l .  I 

don ' t  know which ones he's t a l k i n g  about, bu t  I w i l l  concede 

t h a t  there are some answers t h a t  say there 's  no fu r ther  

information. And what I would assert t o  you i s  t h a t  t h a t  i s  a 

l e g a l l y  s u f f i c i e n t  answer i f  tha t  i s  t rue.  It i s  not 

Mr. Lackey's or  Bel lSouth's j ob  t o  put on I D S ' S  case. 

doesn't have information i n  the  way o f  a document o r  a response 

I f  I D S  
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Ieyond the testimony o f  i t s  witnesses, then the  Commission 

zannot compel the creat ion o f  something t h a t  does not e x i s t .  

What I am saying t o  you i s ,  IDS has made as good an 

2 f f o r t  as i t  can t o  produce an answer and t o  produce documents 

dherever those things e x i s t .  I f  the only answer i s  the 

testimony o f  our witnesses, then t h a t ' s  our problem. That i s  

l o t  - - I mean, Bel lSouth has every opportuni ty - - they've now 

asked us t o  produce documents. We c a n ' t  show up on the 21st 

d i t h  a bunch o f  s t u f f  we d i d n ' t  give them. That 's  the way i t  

dorks. 

clo t h a t .  

I mean, and t h a t  i s  p e r f e c t l y  appropriate t h a t  we can ' t  

What I ' m  saying t o  you i s ,  we want t o  show up w i t h  

s t u f f  on the 21st, so we would produce i t  i f  we had it. But i f  

de don ' t  have it, the Commission cannot sanction a company f o r  

not having it. I t ' s  j u s t  l i k e  i f  I asked BellSouth t o  produce 

something t h a t  they say they don ' t  have, and then I say, hey, 

you know, I can ' t  go t o  hearing because they d i d n ' t  produce X, 

Y ,  Z,  and they ' re  here t e l l i n g  you they don ' t  have it. You 

can ' t  - - i t  would be t o t a l l y  inappropriate f o r  you t o  continue 

a case - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Thank you. I ' ve heard 

enough. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Lackey, l e t  me ask you a 

question. To the extent t h a t  the discovery which you have 
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filed and you have indicated is not complete or not responsive, 
t o  the extent that that discovery was to gain further 
information on the direct case and allegations made within 
direct testimony, have you considered - -  if there's no 
information that can substantiate it, have you just considered 
filing a motion to strike that direct testimony? 

MR. LACKEY: That's certainly a possibility, and 
we'll do that if that's where we end up, but I need to respond 
and say that that's not what the answer says. There are some 
interrogatory answers, for instance, Number 70, where they 
said, "IDS has no documents responsive to this request." 

Now, if they say, we have no documents responsive to 
this request, that's an appropriate and legally sufficient 
answer. And you will find that Number 70 isn't on my list 
anymore. But when they tell me that they have no resources, 
and then the next answer is, we have no further information, 
that does say anything. They said they didn't have resources 
to look, and then later they say they have no further 
information. 

I don't know whether they're saying, well, you know, 
we didn't have the resources to look, and, gee, we still 
haven't looked, and we still don't have any information. Or 
whether they're saying, we have looked, we have done a diligent 
search of our documents, and we have no documents that would be 
responsive to your request, which would be a legally sufficient 
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mswer. I ' m  not  s p l i t t i n g  hai rs .  The d i f ference i s  c lear .  

!nd we can go through and t r y  t o  s t r i k e  the s t u f f ,  you know, 

md we can - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, what we're going t o  do a t  

t h i s  po in t  i s ,  we're going t o  take a recess. S t a f f ,  I ' m  

j i r e c t i n g  S t a f f  and the pa r t i es  t o  meet together. 

item by item according t o  your 1 i s t ,  Mr. Lackey. I want - - i f  

it can be c l a r i f i e d  between the p a r t i e s  as t o  whether there  i s  

j us t  no informat ion t o  be provided, i t  does not e x i s t ,  and no 

nore informat ion i s  going t o  be forthcoming, and nothing i s  

jo ing t o  be presented a t  hearing i n  t h a t  regard, i f  t h a t  can be 

substantiated between the  two pa r t i es ,  I want t h a t  t o  take 

11 ace. 

I want t o  go 

I want S t a f f  t o  pa r t i c i pa te .  I want t o  - -  i f  need 

le ,  when we reconvene t h i s  prehearing conference, w e ' l l  go i tem 

iy item, bu t  t o  the extent t h a t  items can be el iminated from 

your l i s t ,  f o r  whatever reason, I want tha t  done. I want t o  be 

j b l e  t o  focus on the items t h a t  remain, i f  any, and I w i l l  get  

3 l i t t l e  b i t  o f  a f l a v o r  f o r  it a t  t h a t  po in t .  And we w i l l  

-ecess f o r  one hour. We w i l l  reconvene a t  eleven o 'c lock,  and 

then we w i l l  go through whatever l i s t  i s  necessary t h a t  remains 

3 t  t h a t  time. 

I s  there any questions from the  pa r t i es  as t o  what my 

j i r e c t i o n  i s ?  

MS. SUMMERLIN: Commissioner Deason, I guess w e ' l l  be 
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happy t o  t r y  t o  cooperate w i th  what you're saying, but what I 

have said t o  you i s  t ha t  the response we provided on there, 

when we say there 's  no fur ther  information, t h a t  i s  an - -  
exact ly what Mr. Lackey i s  t r y i n g  - -  he's t r y i n g  t o  

characterize t h a t  as saying tha t ,  oh, we l l ,  you know, the  next 

week we're going t o  get together and come up w i t h  something and 

show up a t  the hearing. That 's not what we're doing. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Just s a t i s f y  Mr. Lackey during 

the next hour i f  t h a t ' s  the case, and maybe he won't have any 

items l e f t  on h i s  l i s t .  

MR. LACKEY: Just so t h i s  i s  productive. May I give 

an example, j u s t  one example, o f  what I ' m  t a l  k ing  about? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : Sure. 

MR. LACKEY: In ter rogatory  55 asked them, i t  says, 

"Please i d e n t i f y  the customers who were po l l ed  by I D S ' S  

customer re la t ionsh ip  management team as referenced on Page 6 

o f  Mr. Hamilton's p r e f i l e d  d i r e c t  testimony." 

On Page 6 o f  Mr. Hamilton's testimony he says, "We 

made hundreds o f  c a l l s  t o  our marketing department customer 

re la t ions  group t o  determine i f  customers have provided some 

form o f  author izat ion other than a verbal request f o r  BellSouth 

t o  take them back, and not a s ing le customer t h a t  went back t o  

BellSouth i n  January o r  February 2001 provided any such 

author izat ion t o  BellSouth. 'I 

That 's h i s  testimony. We asked him f o r  the i d e n t i t y  
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if the  customers so we could check and see what we had, and 

ve've got nothing. Now, i t ' s  not  enough f o r  them t o  say, we 

l o n ' t  have any fu r ther  informat ion.  

zalled. They've got records. And i f  we don ' t  know who they 

:ailed, we can ' t  check and see whether we had LOAs f o r  these 

xstomers. So, you know, I guess I need t o  s t r i k e  t h a t  

testimony because it ' s c l  e a r l y  p re  j u d i  c i  a1 . 

I mean, they know who they 

They said, hey, we ca l l ed  our customers, and they 

;aid they switched us back wi thout  a l e t t e r  o f  author izat ion.  

lkay. Let me check and see whether I ' v e  got LOAs. Sorry, we 

j o n ' t  know who the  customers are. How am I going t o  defend 

jga inst  t ha t?  That 's the s o r t  o f  t h i n g  we're t a l k i n g  about. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I understand, and I t h i n k  maybe 

the next hour can be product ive ly  used. And t o  the  extent t h a t  

there are items which remain t h a t  need my a t ten t ion ,  w e ' l l  go 

through i t  i tem by item. We w i l l  stand i n  recess u n t i l  

51 even 0' clock. 

(Recess from 1O:OO a.m. t o  11:OO a.m.) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: C a l l  the prehearing conference 

back t o  order. S t a f f ,  I understand t h a t  discussions have taken 

place and should continue t o  take place concerning the  

discovery dispute, but  t h a t  we can proceed w i t h  other matters. 

MS. HELTON: That 's  cor rec t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Mr. Lackey, you have two 

other pending motions: A motion t o  defer and then a motion 
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concerning supplemental testimony. Which do you wish t o  

address next? 

MR. LACKEY: Actual ly,  I th ink  they ' re  both p r e t t y  

easy t o  resolve, or  a t  l eas t  a t  t h i s  po int .  What we asked f o r  

was fu r ther  i n te res t  t o  our discovery and an opportuni ty t o  

provide supplemental testimony once we had those complete 

answers. Obviously, the question o f  providing fu r the r  

supplemental rebut ta l  testimony i s  going t o  depend upon your 

r u l i n g  o f  the f i r s t  motion. So I th ink  they go together. 

I f  you conclude t h a t  they should be required t o  

provide fur ther  answers and continue the hearing, then I would 

ask t h a t  you also al low us, once they completely answer the 

questions, al low us t o  f i l e  supplemental testimony addressing 

those issues. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: How much time do you need - -  
assuming t h a t  there i s  t o  be addi t ional  discovery produced, how 

much time a f t e r  t h a t  discovery i s  produced do you need t o  

compl e te your suppl emental ? 

MR. LACKEY: No more than two weeks a t  the  absolute 

outside once i t ' s  a l l  done, once i t ' s  a l l  complete. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: But you understand t h a t  t h i s  

hearing begins on September the  21st ,  which i s  11 days from 

today. 

MR. LACKEY: I understand t h a t  t h a t ' s  when i t ' s  

supposed t o  begin. I f  you grant the motion t o  continue, t h a t  
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joesn' t  become an issue, I suppose. I f  you do - - i f  you do no t  

jrant the  motion, the second hearing, I bel ieve,  i s  on 

Ictober 1s t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That ' s cor rec t .  

MR. LACKEY: So there i s  some - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Some 1 eeway there.  

MR. LACKEY: I f  we get answers, we could f i l e  the  

testimony i n  between the two days, I guess, s ince I assume we 

M i l l  be going dur ing the  l a t t e r  part  o f  the  hearing. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : Okay. Ms. Summer1 i n ,  do you 

dish t o  respond t o  tha t?  

MS. SUMMERLIN: Well, I t h i n k  tha t  I D S  has provided 

supplemental - - a second supplemental response on 

September 6th.  And I t h i n k  t h a t  we don ' t  ob jec t  t o  BellSouth 

being able t o  f i l e  supplemental rebut ta l  because o f  the f a c t  

t h a t  they got t h a t  testimony a t  t h a t  po in t .  The idea t h a t  i t  

would be between the two dates, t h a t ' s  no t  even something I had 

considered. 

The other issue w i l l  be t h a t  we w i l l  be f i l i n g  a 

motion t o  compel and be t ry ing  t o  do the  same thing. So I 

guess we're no t  ob ject ing t o t a l l y  t o  t h e  concept o f  them being 

able t o  f i l e  supplemental rebu t ta l .  We ' l l  be asking f o r  the 

same r i g h t  when we f i l e  our motion t o  compel. 

MS. HELTON: One - - 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let  me ask one th ing .  
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MS. HELTON: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summer1 i n ,  do you - - how do 

you foresee us proceeding w i th  the hearing dates t h a t  we have 

and s t i l l  provide an opportunity t o  BellSouth t o  f i l e  

supplemental testimony, supplemental rebut ta l ,  as we1 1 t o  

provide time f o r  you t o  provide - -  t o  f i l e  your motion t o  

compel and t o  get addi t ional  discovery and t o  f i l e  supplemental 

rebut ta l  a l l  w i th in  the t ime period t o  have t h i s  go t o  hearing 

on September 21st and October l s t ?  

MS. SUMMERLIN: Well, we have 11 days between now and 

then. It would seem t o  me t h a t  BellSouth needs t o  be given a t  

l eas t  a few days t o  f i l e  t h e i r  supplemental. We're going t o  

immediately f i l e  a motion t o  compel. I f  we f i l e  one a t  a l l ,  i t  

w i l l  be immediately, w i t h i n  a day. We w i l l  be asking f o r  

discovery t o  be produced by BellSouth w i t h i n  three or four 

days. O r  whatever we i d e n t i f y  i n  t h a t  motion t o  compel, w i l l  

be something t h a t  we obviously have decided i s  absolutely 

usual ly  essential . 
So, I mean, i t ' s  p e r f e c t l y  possible t o  s t i c k  w i t h  the 

hearing dates t h a t  we have and handle these things, I believe. 

I mean, i t ' s  not  easy, bu t  i t ' s  c e r t a i n l y  possible. And I D S  i s  

f a r  more committed t o  ge t t i ng  t o  t h i s  hearing on September 21st  

than any other issue i n  t h i s  s i t ua t i on  r i g h t  now. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, i t ' s  my desire t o  work 

w i th  the par t ies  and t o  t r y  t o  make a l l  accommodations 
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possible. But a t  some point ,  i f  the  dispute i s  concerning 

discovery and the need t o  continue t o  f i l e  supplemental 

rebuttal  testimony continues, t h a t  some points  are going t o  put 

i n  question and p o t e n t i a l l y  jeopardize the  hearing dates, t h a t  

i s ,  j u s t  from a scheduling standpoint, j u s t  f o r  the moment 

ignor ing the motion t o  continue, and t h a t  w i l l  be taken up i n  

due course. So jus t  f o r  the pa r t i es '  benef i t ,  there i s  a 

concern there. 

M r .  Lackey, do you wish t o  address your motion 

concerning the OSS issues? 

MR. LACKEY: Yes, I th ink  t h a t ' s  about a 30 second 

issue. It essen t ia l l y  i s  the same issue t h a t  we raised w i t h  

regard t o  the anticompetit ive a c t i v i t i e s .  Basica l ly ,  Issue 

1 and Issue 2 impl icate the question o f  whether we are 

providing access t o  our operating systems a t  p a r i t y .  That 's 

what's going t o  have t o  be resolved i n  order t o  resolve Issues 

1 and 2, a t  l eas t  i t  appears on i t s  face t h a t ' s  what's going t o  

have t o  be resolved. You have an e n t i r e  proceeding, inc lud ing 

t h i r d - p a r t y  t e s t i n g  and a l l  the r e s t  o f  it, t h a t  deals w i t h  

t h i s  exact issue. 

handle the p a r i t y  issue i n  t h i s  hearing between I D S  and 

BellSouth when you have a docket and a proceeding and 

t h i r d - p a r t y  t e s t i n g  t h a t ' s  been going on f o r  two years t h a t  

imp1 icates the e n t i r e  industry. 

I'm not qu i te  sure how you're going t o  

And so what we would ask i s  t h a t  t h i s  issue, these 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

issues, these parts o f  these issues be moved t o  those generic 

proceedings as w e l l  so tha t  they can a l l  be handled e f f i c i e n t l y  

and a t  one time. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : Ms. Summer1 i n .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: Commissioner, I ' m  sure you have seen 

our w r i t t e n  response t o  BellSouth's motion. I guess the bottom 

l i n e  i s ,  the other proceeding t h a t  the Commission i s  conducting 

r i g h t  now was not const i tuted t o  l i t i g a t e  the r i g h t s  o f  

ind iv idual  par t ies  t o  interconnection agreements. Whether or  

not BellSouth i s  providing IDS OSS a t  p a r i t y  a t  t h i s  po in t  i n  

time i s  pa r t  and parcel o f  the interconnection agreement 

between the two par t ies.  And IDS j u s t  l i k e  any other CLEC i n  

the s tate o f  F lor ida has a r i g h t ,  or  ALEC i n  the s tate o f  

Florida, has a r i g h t  t o  come t o  the Commission and ask t o  have 

any issues under tha t  interconnection agreement tha t  they have 

d i t h  BellSouth l i t i g a t e d .  And I D S  i s  here on t h a t  basis. 

I D S  should not be required t o  pa r t i c i pa te  i n  a 

generic proceeding tha t  i s  looking a t  issues i n  a p o l i c y  sense 

as opposed t o  the actual l i t i g a t i o n  between two par t ies  t o  the 

interconnection agreement. And, you know, I ' v e  said a l o t  o f  

d i f f e ren t  things. I don' t  know t h a t  you need me t o  go on and 

Dn. But t h a t ' s  the bottom l i n e ,  i s  t h a t  I D S  has a r i g h t  t o  

have the i ssues i n  i t s  i nterconnecti  on agreement determi ned by 

the Commission i n  a proceeding t h a t  i s  focussed on the two 

Darties t o  t h a t  agreement. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we l l .  S t a f f ,  do you have 

anything t o  add? 

MS. HELTON: Wel l ,  as I understand the  issues t h a t  

are set  out i n  the order establ ish ing procedure, those are more 

h i s t o r i c a l  type issues where we were looking a t  what has 

happened i n  the past. And as I understand the OSS t e s t i n g  

t h a t ' s  going on i n  Docket Number 960786, t h a t ' s  more o f  a 

current basis. So I th ink  we're looking a t  two d i f f e r e n t  time 

pe r i  ods . 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. I ' m  going t o  deny 

the motion. Even though there may be some dup l i ca t i on  o f  work, 

I th ink  t h a t  i t  i s  important t h a t  we a l l o w  IDS the  opportuni ty 

t o  present t h e i r  case concerning a1 legations o f  OSS 

d i spa r i t i es ,  and we w i l l  proceed on t h a t  basis. 

Mr. Lackey, any other motions? I know t h a t  we have 

some things s t i l l  pending, but  - -  
MR. LACKEY: I d o n ' t  t h i n k  there are any other 

motions t h a t  haven't been addressed. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Ms. Summerlin, do you 

have any - - we l l ,  f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  are there any other pre l iminary 

matters other than the motions? 

MR. LACKEY: Not t h a t  I ' m  aware o f .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. 

MS. HELTON: Commissioner Deason, can I ask about - - 
the par t ies  have f i l e d  several not ices o f  i n t e n t  t o  f i l e  
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requests f o r  conf ident ia l  treatment. I f  we could maybe get a 

date cer ta in  when those requests are going t o  be f i l e d  so tha t  

they cou 

tha t .  I 

not conf 

d be ru led  on p r i o r  t o  the hearing. 

MR. LACKEY: Yeah, we probably need t o  t a l k  about 

d i d n ' t  look a t  those before I came down here, so I ' m  

dent t h a t  I can address them r i g h t  now. But I bel ieve 

t h a t  what some o f  t h a t  was, was t h a t  was information t h a t  we 

thought I D S  might want t o  have kept propr ie tary ,  and so we 

f i l e d  a not ice o f  i n ten t .  But t o  the extent i t ' s  t h e i r  data, 

t hey ' re  going t o  be required t o  f i l e  the motion, I believe. 

MS. HELTON: And t o  be honest w i t h  you, I haven't 

kept t rack,  but qu i te  a few notices have been f i l e d .  So 

there 's  the potent ia l  f o r  qu i te  a few requests being f i l e d .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: As f a r  as I D S ' S  p a r t  goes, what we've 

asked f o r  conf ident ia l  treatment o f  was informat ion re la ted  t o  

our customers. I mean, I th ink  100 percent, r e a l l y ,  o f  what 

we've asked f o r  have been customer names, addresses, and 

account numbers, t h a t  k ind o f  information. 

else. So we w i l l  have t o  f i l e  requests f o r  c o n f i d e n t i a l i t y  f o r  

those. 

I t ' s  not anything 

I th ink  we are l e g a l l y  required t o  do t h a t .  

And i n  terms o f  using any o f  the conf ident ia l  

information i n  the hearing, we w i l l  c e r t a i n l y  fo l low the 

procedures t h a t  are set out i n  the prehearing order r i g h t  now 

and t r y  t o  use w r i t t e n  exh ib i ts ,  you know, and not t a l k  about 

anything t h a t ' s  conf ident ia l .  I mean, t h e o r e t i c a l l y ,  we're 
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jupposed t o  be t a l k i n g  about t h a t  today, so I j u s t  wanted t o  

nake note o f  tha t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: The S t a f f ,  I th ink ,  i s  desirous 

)f a t ime f o r  having any spec i f i c  request t o  be f i l e d .  

MS. HELTON: That 's  exact ly  what I ' m  des i r ing.  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Do you have a suggested - -  
MS. SUMMERLIN: Somehow I knew t h a t  was what you 

dere - -  desires. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Do you have a suggestion, 

S t a f f ?  When can the pa r t i es  f i l e  tha t?  

MS. HELTON: Well, obviously, the sooner, the be t te r  

f o r  S t a f f .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: IDS w i l l  commit t o  t ry ing  t o  get 

those f i l e d  by, I guess, by maybe next Monday, the  17th. 

MS. HELTON: That way i t  w i l l  g ive them a weekend. 

That works f o r  us. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Yeah, these are not  easy th ings t o  

do, as I ' m  sure you -a l l  are aware. 

MS. HELTON: I ' m  very f a m i l i a r  w i t h  companies who 

have a request. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Yeah. 

MR. LACKEY: The ones t h a t  we are going t o  f i l e  the 

request on, we can do i t  by the 18th. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I thought the  17th was the day, 

the 17th. 
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iego t ia t ing .  The 17th w i l l  be f i ne .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: We' l l  take 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : We ' 1 

Ms. Summerlin, do you have 

3efore we proceed fu r ther?  

30 

sorry.  I was j u s t  

the  18th. 

s tay w i t h  the 17th. 

any pre l iminary matters 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Yes, s i r ,  I do. On a p r i o r  occasion, 

I f a i l e d  t o  ask you f o r  the au tho r i t y  t o  g ive an opening 

statement. And so I ' m  asking you today t h a t  I be able t o  g ive 

3n opening statement a t  t h i s  hearing. And w e ' l l  c e r t a i n l y  s tay 

d i t h i n  the - - I t h i n k  you have ten  minutes i n  the  prehearing 

wder . 
MS. HELTON : That ' s correct .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: And I'll c e r t a i n l y  comply w i t h  tha t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Mr. Lackey. 

MR. LACKEY: That ' s  f i n e  w i t h  us. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Ten minutes per side, 

opening statements. Okay. That w i l l  be re f l ec ted  then i n  the  

prehearing order. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: I j u s t  have one other - -  I t h i n k  i t ' s  

j u s t  one other,  l e t ' s  - - I D S  does not  know f o r  sure i f  any 

customers are going t o  be able t o  come t o  t h i s  hearing. I 

would j u s t  l i k e  t o  confirm t h a t  i f  they can come, o r  they want 

t o  come, tha t  they would be allowed t o  do t h e i r  customer 

testimony a t  the  beginning o f  the  proceeding as i s  normally 
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done i n  Commi ss i  on proceedings . 
I don ' t  know whether anybody i s  going t o  come. We're 

not  p u t t i n g  on any testimony. We're no t  - -  you know, we would 

have p r e f i l e d  i t  i f  we were doing i t  tha t  way, but  i f  customers 

wanted t o  come, I need t o  be able t o  t e l l  them when and how 

t h a t  would be handled, so - - 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Lackey. 

MR. LACKEY: We1 1 , I guess we' r e  contemplating as 

t r e a t i n g  these customers 1 i ke pub1 i c  witnesses, but, you know, 

c lea r l y ,  i f  I D S ' S  customers are going t o  appear and t e s t i f y  and 

they have advance knowledge o f  who's coming, maybe they d o n ' t  

have t o  p r e f i l e  the  testimony, bu t  they ought t o  a t  l e a s t  be 

required t o  t e l l  me who they have t a l  ked t o  and, you know, 

what's going on, so I can a t  l e a s t  have somebody look up, you 

know, the people's records and f i nd  out  what the s i t u a t i o n  i s .  

I shouldn' t  be required t o  come i n  here the morning 

o f  the 21st and have a bus load o f  I D S  customers here and no t  

know a t h i n g  about any o f  them and t r y  t o  f ind  out as we go. 

That doesn't s t r i k e  me as being p a r t i c u l a r l y  f a i r .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: I f  I may respond, Commissioner. 

F i r s  o f  a l l ,  I D S  doesn't  know i f  anybody i s  going t o  show up. 

I mean, honestly, we do not  know whether anybody w i l l  show up 

because you ' re  ta lk ing  t h a t  person having t o  pay f o r  

t ranspor tat ion from - - general ly from M i a m i .  I f  any o f  them 

were going t o  come, i t  would be from there,  and I D S  c e r t a i n l y  
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i s  not situated t o  be able t o  afford t h a t  transportation. So I 

t h i n k  there's a natural and inherent barrier t o  the likelihood 
of very many people coming. B u t  we will not know i f  and 

when - - or who will  be coming. 
And I would po in t  ou t  t h a t  this Commission holds 

hearings a l l  the time where customers are invited t o  come, and 

no u t i l i t y  has been pu t  i n  a position of having t o  give the 
other parties information as t o  those customers because they 
d o n ' t  ever know for sure who's going t o  show up. There could 
be endless numbers, or there could be one. I mean, and a t  this 
point  i n  time, we have no expectation t h a t  there's going t o  be 
any b ig  number of people or t h a t  there may not  even be one. I 

just d o n ' t  know, bu t  I certainly d o n ' t  t h i n k  t h a t  we have an 
obl iga t ion  t o  go and t ry  t o  f i n d  out  and give every kind of 

notice t o  BellSouth. 
been their customers also.  

I mean, these are people t h a t  will have 
I mean, i f  they come a t  a l l .  

Quite honestly, I haven't spoken t o  a single person 
who had sa id  t o  me they're going t o  come, and I can te l l  you 

t h a t  as a lawyer right now. 
person, and I d o n ' t  know whether anybody will come. 
do, I will be surprised, bu t  I d o n ' t  t h i n k  i t ' s  IDS'S 

ob l iga t ion  t o  inform anybody about who they are because we 
d o n ' t  know. 
customer of BellSouth or of IDS, they have a right t o  come. 

I haven't spoken t o  a single 
If  they 

I t  i s  a public hearing, and i f  somebody is  a 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Let me just clarify the 
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way we're going t o  handle t h i s .  

hearing and wishes t o  make a statement, they w i l l  be permitted 

t h a t  opportuni ty,  as i s  customary. But i t  i s  no t  commonplace 

f o r  there t o  be an outpouring o f  customer testimony w i t h i n  the 

confines o f  a complaint docket. This Commission goes t o  great 

lengths t o  get customer testimony, bu t  i t  i s  usua l ly  concerning 

q u a l i t y  o f  service i f  i t ' s  a r a t e  proceeding o r  i f  i t ' s  

something o f  some major pub l i c  import such as area codes, 

th ings o f  t h a t  nature. Usually customers do no t  ava i l  

themselves o f  t h e i r  opportuni ty t o  t e s t i  fy  i n  a complaint 

between two competing telephone companies. 

I f  a customer comes t o  t h i s  

I ' m  no t  going t o  say t h a t  I w i l l  no t  take customer 

testimony, bu t  I w i l l  put  t h i s  warning out t h a t  i f  i t  appears 

t h a t  customers are being rec ru i ted  t o  come and t o  t e s t i f y  and 

t h a t  i t  i s  t r y i n g  t o  circumvent the  necessity o f  p r e f i l i n g  

d i r e c t  testimony, i t  w i l l  no t  be looked favorably upon a t  the 

time. 

O f  course, t h i s  i s  - -  the  Chairman w i l l  be ac tua l l y  

pres id ing a t  t h i s  hearing, and i t  w i l l  be up t o  h i s  prerogat ive 

t o  handle t h a t  i n  the way t h a t  he sees, bu t  I w i l l  c e r t a i n l y  

avai l  myself o f  the  opportuni ty t o  a t  l e a s t  discuss w i t h  him a t  

the hearing t h a t  t h i s  matter was discussed a t  prehearing 

conference and t h a t  pa r t i es  were admonished no t  t o  go out and 

r e c r u i t  customers t o  come and t e s t i  fy  i n  support o f  t h e i r  

d i r e c t  case, e i t h e r  side. 
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We w i l l  not  deny customers t h e i r  opportuni ty t o  

r e s e n t  t rue  customer testimony i n  the broad sense. Obviously, 

rar t ies w i l l  be f ree  t o  make any objections i f  i t  appears t h a t  

;he customer testimony r e a l l y  should be pa r t  o f  one o f  the 

rther pa r t y '  s d i  r e c t  case. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Commi ssioner , I appreciate what 

foulre saying, and I ' m  c e r t a i n l y  not ob ject ing t o  any o f  t ha t .  

'he only  th ing  I am concerned about i s ,  obviously, the only  way 

I customer w i l l  know t h i s  case i s  going on i s  i f  somebody has 

;old them a t  one o f  the companies. That does not  mean tha t  

;hey have been recru i ted,  you know, t o  come and f l ood  the  

iearing. Obviously, we don ' t  have enough t ime t o  deal w i t h  the 

;estimony - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, t h a t  was my other 

:omment, i s  we have two days t o  conduct t h i s  hearing which i t  

ippears t h a t  every minute o f  those two days i s  going t o  be 

i t i l i z e d  and w i l l  be he ld a t  a premium. 

:hairman's p lan i s  going t o  be, but  i f  we f ind ourselves taking 

!xtensive customer testimony, you may get a de fac to  

:ontinuance o f  t h i s  hearing i f  we cannot conclude w i t h i n  two 

jays. 

I d o n ' t  know what the 

And i f  t h i s  i s  going t o  be heard by the f u l l  panel o f  

:ommissioners, a l l  f i v e  Commissioners, I don ' t  know when the 

iext  avai lable hearing date - -  i t  may be the next day, o r  i t  

nay be s i x  months, but t h a t ' s  up t o  the Chairman's o f f i c e  t o  
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determine tha t .  

Any other prel iminary matters? 

Let me ask S t a f f :  This hearing has been noticed i n  

the normal way o f  F lor ida Administrat ive Weekly, but  there 's  

been no requirement t o  send out any customer not ice because i t  

i s  not r e a l l y  w i th in  the normal - -  or  describe t o  me, i f  you 

can, the extent t h a t  any not ice has been given concerning t h i s  

hearing. 

MS. HELTON: Just as you said, i t ' s  been published i n  

the F lor ida Administrat ive Weekly as i s  required i n  Chapter 

120, F lor ida Statutes, and we also l a s t  week issued the 

Commission not ice t h a t ' s  t y p i c a l l y  - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: I t ' s  on our Web s i t e  and t h a t  

so r t  o f  th ing? 

MS. HELTON: Right. But t h a t ' s  not  issued t o  any 

customers e i ther .  That 's j u s t  issued t o  the  companies and 

anyone t h a t ' s  an in terested person. I bel ieve they also get 

it, but  I don ' t  know t h a t  f o r  a fac t ,  bu t  i t ' s  designated as 

such i n  our case management system. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. A1 1 r i g h t .  Yes, 

Mr. Lackey. 

MR. LACKEY: I haven't done t h i s  i n  a long time, so I 

may have the procedures wrong. But t he re ' s  a couple o f  

corrections t h a t  need t o  be made i n  the prehearing statement, 

and there 's  the issue o f  the order o f  witnesses and there 's  - -  
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: We're going t o  get t o  a l l  o f  

t ha t .  

MR. LACKEY: We're going t o  get t o  a l l  o f  tha t?  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Yes, s i r ,  we sure w i l l .  

MR. LACKEY: Sorry. I t ' s  been a while. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I n  fac t ,  t h a t ' s  what we w i l l  do 

next, i s  we w i l l  proceed through the d r a f t  prehearing order. 

As i s  customary, a t  l eas t  i n  my prehearing conferences, I l i k e  

t o  proceed through t h i s  section by section. 

questions or correct ions or  modif icat ions,  we w i l l  proceed 

r a p i d l y  sec t i  on by sec t i  on. 

I f  there are no 

I f  you have any comment or wish t o  make any 

modif icat ion, l e t  me know, and we w i l l  g ive you the opportuni ty 

to  explain t h a t  f u l l y .  

Having sa id tha t ,  Section I, Conduct o f  Proceedings. 

MS. HELTON: Commissioner Deason, before we get t o  

that ,  I had not included Mr. Lackey i n  the appearances section. 

SO maybe i f  we could ask him whether he needs t o  be included 

there, and the other attorneys t h a t  are l i s t e d  there, should 

they remain there? And are there any addi t ional  attorneys t h a t  

should be included? 

MR. LACKEY: A t  the present time, I bel ieve an 

appearance was entered on my behal f  l a s t  week. I should be 

added t o  the prehearing. 

attorneys t h a t  we w i l l  be adding. 

I don ' t  be l ieve there are any other 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

37 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So j u s t  add your name t o  those 

;hat are there? 

MR. LACKEY: Yes, s i r ,  I ' m  a f r a i d  so. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Very we l l .  Section I, 

Ionduct o f  Proceedi ngs . Section I I, Case Background. 

Section 111, Conf ident ia l  Information. Section I V ,  Posthearing 

'rocedures. Section V ,  P re f i l ed  Testimony and Exhib i ts .  

Section V I ,  Order o f  Witnesses. 

Mr. Lackey. 

MR. LACKEY: I th ink  we've got two issues here. 

' i r s t ,  my witnesses were j u s t  l i s t e d  a lphabet ica l ly ,  so w e ' l l  

lave t o  f i gu re  out what the order i s  going t o  be f o r  the  

i resentat ion.  And I ' m  sor ry  I don ' t  have i t  today because I 

l o n ' t  have it. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: When can you have tha t ,  

Ir. Lackey? 

MR. LACKEY: Within the  next couple o f  days. I j u s t  

l i d n ' t  rea l i ze  u n t i l  I star ted  look ing a t  i t  t h a t  we'd j u s t  

lone i t  alphabet ica l ly .  

MS. HELTON: Today i s  the  l o t h ,  so you can have i t  t o  

ne by the close o f  business on the  12th? 

MR. LACKEY: Sure. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I s  t h a t  sa t is fac to ry?  

MS. HELTON: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Your other concern. 
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MR. LACKEY: The other issue i s  j u s t  a procedural 

one. A l o t  o f  these witnesses f i l e d  d i r e c t  and rebu t ta l .  Are 

we going t o  j u s t  put everybody up a t  one time? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That 's  c e r t a i n l y  - - we 

discuss tha t .  Do you have a preference? 

MR. LACKEY: Everybody a t  one time i s  f i n e  w 

MS. SUMMERLIN: I have a preference, because 

need t o  

t h  me. 

I 

bel ieve t h a t  the way t h i s  case has been handled, I D S  would put 

on i t s  d i r e c t  case, BellSouth puts on d i r e c t  and rebu t ta l ,  and 

then we put  on our rebu t ta l .  That 's  the way the testimony i s  

f i l e d ,  and i n  t h i s  type o f  case, I t h i n k  t h a t ' s  an appropriate 

way t o  order the witnesses. 

MR. LACKEY: I ' m  sorry, I got d is t racted.  Did you - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summerlin ind icated t h a t  

the f low should be: IDS p u t t i n g  on i t s  d i r e c t  case, BellSouth 

pu t t i ng  on i t s  d i r e c t  and rebu t ta l ,  and then I D S  p u t t i n g  on i t s  

rebu t ta l .  I t h i n k  I characterized t h a t  co r rec t l y .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Do you have a problem 

tha t ,  Mr. Lackey? 

MR. LACKEY: No. We're not going t o  t r y  t h  

two days, though. But I c e r t a i n l y  c a n ' t  object  t o  - - 

w i t h  

s case In  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That 's  going t o  be the 

Chairman's problem. 

me t o  be there.  

I ' m  j u s t  going t o  be there when he t e l l s  
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MR. LACKEY: You j u s t  mention t o  him we discussed i t  

during the prehearing conference. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: S t a f f ,  you have no problem w i th  

having I D S  put on i t s  d i r e c t  followed by Bel lSouth's d i r e c t  and 

rebut ta l  and then concluding w i t h  I D S  rebut ta l?  

MS. HELTON: No, s i r ,  we have no problem w i t h  tha t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. To the extent t he  

pa r t i es  need t o  c l a r i f y  w i t h  S t a f f  exact ly  - -  perhaps a l l  

witnesses have d i r e c t  and r e b u t t a l ,  and there may even be some 

supplemental, so I ' m  j u s t  going t o  - - i t ' s  going t o  be 

incumbent upon the pa r t i es  t o  make sure S t a f f  f u l l y  understands 

the order o f  witnesses and which witnesses are going t o  be 

t e s t i f y i n g  i n  which phase o f  the hearing so t h a t  i t  can be 

incorporated co r rec t l y  i n t o  the  prehearing order. 

MR. LACKEY: Let me ask a question about t h a t  since I 

go i n  the middle and my witnesses go up one t ime. For 

instance, Mr. R u s c i l l i  has d i r e c t  testimony by himsel f ,  and 

then he has rebut ta l  testimony i n  a panel o f  two other 

witnesses. We're t a l k i n g  about j u s t  p u t t i n g  him up one time, 

p u t t i n g  everybody up a t  one time, put h i s  - -  
MS. HELTON: I was going t o  ask about t h a t .  As you 

know, t h i s  i s  the f i r s t  t ime I ' v e  ever done a 

telecommunications hearing, and I don ' t  r e c a l l  ever having a 

panel o f  witnesses before. How i s  t h a t  done? O r  i s  t h a t  - - 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: It s not commonpl ace, bu t  i t  s 
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not unheard o f .  We have usual ly  made t h a t  accommodation unless 

t h e r e ' s  been some strenuous object ion and good reason f o r  the  

object ion from opposing par ty .  

Ms. Summerlin, do you have an ob jec t ion  t o  a panel o f  

witnesses? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: No, we responded by our own panel, so 

we can t object  . 
MR. LACKEY: I was wait ing on t h a t .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: He was hoping I would have forgot ten 

tha t .  

MR. LACKEY: No, I d i d n ' t .  

MS. HELTON: Just f o r  c l a r i f i c a t i o n  purposes so we 

don ' t  have t o  go through t h i s  a t  the hearing, so i f  we have a 

cross examination question f o r  the panel, we j u s t  s ta te  our 

question, and then the  panel decides who t o  answer? 

MR. LACKEY: Most o f  our testimony ind ica tes  - -  i f  a 

p a r t i c u l a r  witness on a panel knows about t h e  testimony, i t  has 

t h e i r  name i n  f r o n t  o f  t he  question. And you can j u s t  

d i r e c t  - -  the prac t ice  has been you d i r e c t  t h e  question t o  

whoever you want. The object  i s  t o  get through i t  more qu ick l y  

and t o  get as complete an answer as possible.  So we've lumped 

them together, the  people who ought t o  know some o f  the  same 

things, but  you can - - 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: It would be your prerogative. 

I f  you wish t o  address the  question t o  a p a r t i c u l a r  member o f  
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can respond, and then the - -  o r  they may ind ica te  t h a t  i t  would 

be preferable fo r  another member o f  the panel t o  response, but  

usua l ly  t h a t  goes f a i r l y  smoothly. 

MS. HELTON: Okay. And Ms. Summerlin had not 

provided the l i s t  o f  rebut ta l  witnesses, so I ' m  assuming you 

w i l l  do t h a t  also by the close o f  business on Wednesday so t h a t  

t h a t  can be included i n  the - -  
MS. SUMMERLIN: On Wednesday, okay. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let  me ask t h i s  question. 

M r .  Lackey, when you present your d i r e c t  and your rebu t ta l ,  

since, as you indicated, you are going i n  the middle, are you 

desirous t o  having them do d i r e c t  and rebut ta l  a t  one time? 

MR. LACKEY: Yes, s i r .  What I was r e a l l y  asking 

about i s ,  R u s c i l l i  has got d i r e c t  by himself and then R u s c i l l i  

i s  on a panel w i th  two other witnesses giv ing rebu t ta l .  I 

proposal we j u s t  put  a l l  three o f  them up there,  l e t  him g ive 

h i s  d i r e c t ,  give h i s  rebut ta l  and the panel g ive t h e i r  rebu t ta l  

a l l  a t  one s i t t i n g  instead o f  p u t t i n g  him up and then 

questioning him about h i s  d i r e c t ,  then p u l l i n g  him o f f  and 

p u t t i n g  the panel up. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summer1 i n ,  any object ion? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: That 's  f i ne .  

MR. LACKEY: But I d o n ' t  care. I mean, i f  somebody 

objects, w e ' l l  do i t  the other way. 
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MS. SUMMERLIN : That s f i ne. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I f  i t  w i l l  f a c i l i t a t e  and 

expedite, l e t ' s  go w i t h  tha t .  

MR. LACKEY: I t h i n k  i t  w i l l .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Perhaps now would be a good 

time t o  address customer, not customer, but  witness summaries 

o f  testimony. We are going t o  al low, as i s  customary, 

witnesses t o  provide a b r i e f  summary o f  t h e i r  testimony. And 

perhaps there should be emphasis on the term " b r i e f "  i f  we're 

serious about trying t o  conclude t h i s  hearing i n  two days. 

So I w i l l  not  put  any spec i f i c  t ime per iod on, bu t  

j u s t  make i t  c lear  t o  your witnesses t h a t  i t  should be a 

summary, which means t h a t  they should on ly  summarize what i s  i n  

t h e i r  testimony and not take a summary as an oppor tun i ty  t o  

expand upon what has been p r e f i l e d  and t h a t  i t  should be kept 

as b r i e f  as possible. 

M r .  Lackey. 

MR. LACKEY: The d r a f t  order says f i v e  minutes on 

witness summaries. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: There i s  a t ime period? 

MR. LACKEY: It says - - 
MS. HELTON: Can you ref resh my memory as t o  which 

section t h a t ' s  i n ?  

MR. LACKEY: I t ' s  on Section I V ,  "Summaries o f  

testimony shal l  be l i m i t e d  t o  f i v e  minutes." 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: I don ' t  have an object ion 

having the time period. I s  there - -  
MR. LACKEY: That 's f i ne .  

MS. SUMMERLIN : That s f i ne .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Five minutes? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: That 's f i ne .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We can leave i t  i n  then. 

That's f ine .  And I w i l l  leave i t  up t o  the Chairman t o  enforce 

it. 

Section V I I ,  Basic Posit ions. Section V I I I ,  w e ' l l  go 

issue by issue w i t h i n  t h a t  section and begin w i t h  Issue 1. 

Issue 2. 

MR. LACKEY: W a i t  a minute. Yes. On Issue 2, on 

Page 10, a t  the end o f  ours, the "33 percent" should be 

' I .  53 percent. " 

MS. HELTON: .53 percent? 

MR. LACKEY: Uh-huh. I about had a stroke when I saw 

the 33 percent. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. That change has been 

noted. 

Any other changes f o r  Issue 2? 

MR. NOSHAY: .05 percent? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I t ' s  a .53 percent, which i s  a 

1 i ttl e more than one- ha1 f percent. 

Issue 3. Issue 4. Issue 5. 
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MR. LACKEY: There's a typo i n  our pos i t ion .  There's 

an apostrophe a f t e r  the "has'' on Page 12, a small th ing.  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: S t a f f ,  d i d  you catch tha t?  

MS. HELTON: I understood t h a t  one. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we l l .  We can proceed now 

t o  Section I X ,  Exh ib i t  L i s t ,  which i s  q u i t e  extensive. Any 

changes or  corrections? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: For IDS,  Commissioner, there i s  an 

extremely long l i s t  t h a t  we submitted i n  our prehearing 

statement t h a t  we're going t o  replace t h a t  w i t h  the  actual 

d i r e c t  - - o r  actual rebut ta l  e x h i b i t s  t h a t  we f i l e d ,  and t h a t  

w i l l  shorten t h a t  l i s t  tremendously because a l l  o f  those are 

subsumed i n  one exh ib i t .  So i t  w i l l  be a l o t  less  lengthy. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we l l .  Can you get t h a t  t o  

S t a f f  by close o f  business Wednesday? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Uh-huh. 

MR. LACKEY: I d o n ' t  know what t h a t  means, bu t  I 

guess w e ' l l  j u s t  w a i t  and see what they are when they get  here. 

delve got some exh ib i t s  t h a t  we're going t o  ob ject  t o ,  bu t  - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: We' l l  deal w i t h  t h a t  when the  

ditness takes the  stand, and w e ' l l  have them i d e n t i f i e d ,  which 

is customary, and then you may ob jec t  t o  those before they get 

admitted i n t o  the  record. 

MR. LACKEY: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Section X ,  Proposed 
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t o  negot iate a settlement 

ec t  there were a few 

Section X I ,  Pending Motions. We w i l l  deal w i t h  the 

motion f o r  continuance l a t e r  today. 

MS. HELTON: That ' s correct .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We have a1 ready addressed the 

motion t o  defer OSS issue, and we w i l l  a lso address the  motion 

t o  f i l e  supplemental rebut ta l  testimony a f t e r  we address the  

d i  spute concerning d i  scovery. 

MS. HELTON: I don ' t  know i f  t h i s  i s  appropriate or 

not. I know Ms. Summerlin has sa id t h a t  she plans on f i l i n g  a 

motion t o  compel. Would i t  be appropriate t o  ask the  pa r t i es  

i f  they p lan on f i l i n g  any other motions so t h a t  S t a f f  can k ind 

o f  look a t  t h e i r  workload s i t u a t i o n  t o  p lan  t ime t o  have t o  

deal w i th  those, i f  necessary? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, I t h i n k  i t ' s  f a i r  t o  ask 

the pa r t i es  i f  they, s i t t i n g  here today, i f  they know t h a t  

there w i l l  be motions t h a t  w i l l  be f i l e d  t o  a t  l e a s t  advise you 

as t o  what they are, bu t  obviously, they w i l l  s t i l l  be f ree  t o  

f i l e  motions i n  the fu tu re  depending upon the  course o f  the  

docket. 

MS. HELTON: Right. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I'll j u s t  ask the  pa r t i es ,  i f  

you're aware o f  any motions tha t ,  s i t t i n g  here today, t h a t  you 
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probably would be he lp fu l .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: We w i l l  be f i l i n g  a motion t o  compel, 

and I w i l l  do i t  j u s t  as f a s t  as I can. 

MR. LACKEY: I don ' t  intend t o  f i l e  any more motions 

t o  compel anyway. But the only  issue t h a t  I have t h a t ' s  open 

t h a t  we're s t i l l  t a l k i n g  about was the rebut ta l  testimony o f  

Mr. Kramer t h a t  was supposed t o  be f i l e d  on the  5th. It was 

f i l e d  - - served on us without exh ib i ts  sometime a f t e r  the close 

o f  business on the 6th. We found a revised copy w i th  exh ib i t s  

s tu f fed  i n t o  the bars - -  the  door o f  our o f f i c e .  I n  other 

words, i t  was f i l e d  l a t e ,  and we're s t i l l  t a l k i n g  about whether 

we're j u s t  going t o  l e t  t h a t  one go o r  not. That 's the  only  

other th ing  I know o f  t h a t  we've got s i t t i n g  out there. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Well, i f  necessary, we w i l l  f i l e  a 

motion f o r  leave t o  accept the  l a t e - f i l e d .  It was a 

rep1 acement testimony. There were c l e r i c a l  problems w i t h  

formating and ge t t i ng  the exh ib i t s  on there, and h i s  testimony 

was f i l e d  on the correct  date without the exh ib i t s  because o f  

the c l e r i c a l  - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: I th ink  t h i s  i s  something the 

pa r t i es  can t a l k  about. 

MR. LACKEY: We j u s t  haven't had a chance t o  look a t  

it, o r  I haven't looked a t  it. And since you asked me, I 

d i d n ' t  want t o  surprise you i f  something came out. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: I would suggest t h a t  the 

pa r t i es  work t h i s  out between themselves, and i f  not ,  advise 

S t a f f  t h a t  you w i l l  be f i l i n g  a motion and f i l e  it. And i t  

w i l l  be deal t  w i th  i n  due course. 

MR. LACKEY: I don ' t  t h ink  i t ' s  going t o  be an issue, 

qu i te  f rankly.  I j u s t  d o n ' t  want t o  surpr ise you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: S t a f f ,  d i d  t h a t  answer your 

question? 

MS. HELTON: Close enough. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Section X I I ,  Pending 

Conf ident ia l i t y  Matters. We addressed t h a t  t o  some extent 

p r i o r .  

S t a f f ,  do you need any fu r ther  c l a r i f i c a t i o n ?  

MS. HELTON: I j u s t  want t o  confirm t h a t  the pa r t i es  

d i l l  f i l e  any request f o r  conf ident ia l  treatment by Monday, 

September the 17th. And i f  i t  gets f i l e d  a f t e r  t ha t ,  then i t ' s  

going t o  be publ ic ;  i s  t h a t  correct? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: No, I don ' t  t h i n k  so. 

MR. LACKEY: I t ' s  okay w i th  us. 

MS. HELTON: Pardon? 

MR. LACKEY: I t ' s  okay w i th  us. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We w i l l  not d ivu lge 

information, but I t h i n k  i t  i s  important f o r  the  pa r t i es  t o  

neet t h a t  deadline. And i f  they cannot be met, they should 

3emonstrate good cause f o r  why. 
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MS. SUMMERLIN: Sure. We w i l l  do everything we can 

;o meet tha t  deadline. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. And Section X I I I ,  

tu l ings.  This sect ion w i l l  incorporate ru l i ngs  t h a t  have been 

nade previous here today and ru l i ngs  subsequent t o  the present 

noment . 
I understand tha t  the pa r t i es  need addi t ional  t ime t o  

:ontinue the review o f  the matters which are subject o f  

j iscovery and motion t o  compel. Let  me - -  i s  t he  time being 

i t i l i z e d  i n  a f r u i t f u l  manner? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Commissioner, I have - - what I have 

jttempted t o  do i s  t o  contact the  people - -  my c l i e n t ' s  

ieadquarters down i n  M i a m i  t o  t ry  t o  get them t o  look a t  the  

l i s t  t h a t  M r .  Lackey produced today t o  t r y  t o  see i f  there are 

i t he r  responses t h a t  were provided t h a t  are appl icable t o  the  

things t h a t  he has i d e n t i f i e d ,  because t o  the  best o f  my 

mowledge, we have given everything t h a t  we had. 

And i f  i t  happened t o  be something t h a t  was provided 

i n  another response, i f  we can i d e n t i f y  something tha t  w i l l  

i e l p  BellSouth t o  see what we're t a l k i n g  about, t h a t ' s  what 

de're t r y i n g  t o  do. I mean, the bottom l i n e  i s ,  i f  we had 

anything, we have t r i e d  t o  produce it. And, you know, t o  the  

2xtent t ha t  you g ive  us any more time, I w i l l  have t h a t  e f f o r t  

20 on and t r y  t o  respond. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summerlin, there can be no 
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t ime given. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: No, what I mean i s  today. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Oh, yes, today. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Get back t o  you. That 's  a l l  I ' m  

t a l  k i ng  about. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Oh, okay. I thought you were 

asking f o r  - -  
MS. SUMMERLIN: No, no. no. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: - -  addi t ional  t ime t o  f i l e  

responses. I ' v e  already made t h a t  accommodation. What I want 

i s ,  I th ink  i t  would be he lp fu l  t o  continue f o r  the  pa r t i es  t o  

discuss it. What I ' m  desirous o f  i s  f o r  I D S  t o  i nd i ca te  t o  

BellSouth i f  no informat ion ex i s t s  o r  a review has already been 

clone and everything t h a t  ex i s t s  has been provided and nothing 

else i s  forthcoming, I want t h a t  indicated. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I f  there are matters out  there, 

there 's  informat ion t h a t  should be provided which was no t  

provided before now, we l l ,  then I t h i n k  t h a t ' s  a p r e t t y  serious 

nat ter ,  and I w i l l  then have t o  contemplate whether we need t o  

zontinue t h i s  hearing. 

the f u l l e s t  extent possible today before we leave. 

I would l i k e  t o  have t h a t  resolved t o  

Having said tha t ,  I w i l l  a l low addi t ional  t ime f o r  

that t o  take place. 

ieeds t o  know i f  the responses he 's  gotten ind icates t h a t  

I t h i n k  t h a t  i t ' s  obvious t h a t  Mr. Lackey 
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;here's nothing else forthcoming or i f  there's s t i l l  a 
; i tua t ion  where you just indicate t h a t  you need more time t o  
:ompletely respond. I t h i n k  that ' s  two different matters 
jltogether. I need t o  know t h a t  myself, and i t  has a bearing 
in the way I will treat the motion t o  continue the hearing as 
vel1 as the question of the time period for f i l i n g  supplemental 
;estimony. They're just dependent upon t h a t  further discovery. 

Any questions? I f  I can give any further guidance? 
Ir. Lackey, you look a l i t t l e  puzzled. 

MR. LACKEY: No, no, I'm not puzzled. I'm just 
:oncerned, I guess is  the issue. And I ' l l  s tay here as long as 
ve need to .  As far as I'm concerned, i f  they te l l  me, for 
instance, using t h a t  customer interrogatory I t a l  ked about ,  
; ha t  they can't identify the customers and t h a t  they have no 
locuments t h a t  would allow them t o  identify the customers, then 
:o me that 's  a complete answer t o  the question. I mean, that 's 
iretty straightforward t o  me. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Obviously, you're not asking 
Ghem t o  provide information which does not exist. 

MR. LACKEY: Exactly right, but  I want an unequivocal 
statement t h a t  they d o n ' t  have the information, i t  doesn't 
?xist, and there are no documents. And I t h i n k  I'm entitled t o  
t h a t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summer1 i n ,  do you have any 

ibjection t o  t h a t ?  
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MS. SUMMERLIN: No. We w i l l  c l a r i f y  t h a t  the 

responses t h a t  say ''no fu r the r  information" on t h i s  question 

means "no documents" i f  they have not been provided. 

there 's  something i n  the responses t o  another question t h a t  

meets t h a t  pa r t i cu la r  question and t h a t ' s  why t h a t  response was 

given, then I w i l l  c l a r i f y  t h a t .  I mean, t h a t ' s  the  only  other 

possi b i  1 i ty. 

I f  

MR. LACKEY: What I want t o  make sure o f  i s ,  no 

documents o r  no information. I mean, the f a c t  t h a t  i t ' s  

inconvenient t o  go back and look a t  the records t o  f i n d  out 

dhich customers you ca l l ed  t o  get informat ion f o r  doesn't  mean 

there 's  no information avai lable.  That 's  my po in t .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: Well, I guess on t h a t  po in t  I need t o  

say t h a t  the response would be i f  the company has not  got any 

day t o  go through every l a s t  piece o f  paper t h a t  i t  has t o  be 

able t o  compile a request, t h a t  - - i n  one sense, you can say 

there i s  information, but i t  may not  be possible f o r  them t o  

produce t h a t  information. And i f  they cannot produce i t  t o  

give t o  M r .  Lackey now, they c a n ' t  produce i t  a t  the hearing, 

nean, c lea r l y .  

So, I mean, the bottom l i n e  i s  e i t he r  they 've got i 

I 

and they can produce i t  because i t ' s  i n  a form they can give it 

to  somebody, or i t ' s  there i n  a whole inc red ib le  f i l e  cabinet 

f u l l  o f  records t h a t  nobody - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: But I ' m  s t i l l  going t o  g ive 
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you-al l  t ime  t o  discuss i t , but Ms. Summerlin, i t  seems t o  me 

that i t  was - - you had the burden t o  object based upon 

nelevancy or  i f  i t  was over ly  burdensome or  whatever, and there 

vere no objections f i l e d ,  i s  my understanding, t o  any o f  the 

j iscovery tha t  was f i l e d  by Bellsouth; am I correct? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: There were no objections f i l e d .  You 

j o n ' t  have t o  f i l e  an object ion before you know t h a t  the  

information does not e x i s t .  The way t h i s  process works i s ,  you 

f i l e  an objection i f  you th ink  something i s  absolutely 

inappropriate. That wasn't the pos i t ion  t h a t  I D S  took. 

The pos i t ion  was, i f  something was relevant t o  the  

:ase and they had it, they should produce it, and they t r i e d  

to. And the answer t h a t  was given was simply t o  r e f l e c t  t h a t  

there i s  no information t o  provide. I t ' s  j u s t  l i k e  asking 

3ellSouth a question t h a t  they may have. There's a l l  kinds o f  

information tha t  they have t h a t  they ' re  not going t o  be able t o  

woduce because they ' re  not  going t o  have enough people t o  put 

3n t h a t  task  t o  do it. And t h a t ' s  a leg i t imate  response i n  

some s i tuat ions,  and I t h i n k  i t  i s  i n  t h i s  s i t u a t i o n  t o  some o f  

these questions. But I ' m  not  saying t h a t ' s  even the response. 

I w i l l  c l a r i f y  t h a t  e i t h e r  they have nothing o r  there 's  some 

other response t h a t  we've given tha t  has the  informat ion i n  it, 

one or  the other. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we1 1 . 
MR. LACKEY: And, again, I want t o  leave the record 
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c lear ,  suggesting tha t  I ' m  requi r ing or  the l a w  requires 

anything other than a reasonable search o f  documents tha t  might 

reasonably be expected t o  contain the data. I ' m  not saying you 

have t o  look a t  every piece o f  paper, but when you get an 

i nqu i r y  and you don ' t  object, you've got t o  a t  leas t  look, make 

a reasonable search. That 's a l l  we're here about. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. I w i l l  ask the par t ies  

how much time i s  needed t o  conclude discussing the discovery 

dispute so tha t  we can give you adequate t i m e  but, a t  the same 

time, rea l i ze  tha t  we need t o  conclude t h i s  prehearing 

conference today. 

Ms. Summer1 i n .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: The problem I ' v e  got r i g h t  t h i s  

second i s ,  i f  I c a l l  them up and they have the answers r i g h t  

now, we could be back here i n  15 minutes, but I don ' t  know i f  

they've got the - -  i f  they ' re  ready t o  t e l l  me t h a t  or not. 

MS. HELTON: I th ink  we'd s t i l l  need t o  go through 

the questions, or S t a f f  would. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: The problem t h a t  I have, I have 

a hearing tha t  convenes a t  1:30, which i s  a continuation 

hearing i n  a d i f f e r e n t  docket. 

t i m e  per iod i s  f o r  t h a t  hearing. 

I don ' t  know exact ly what the 

I would suggest t h a t  we reconvene a t  2 3 0  w i th  the 

assumption t h a t  the - -  t h a t  my hearing w i l l  conclude by tha t  

t ime;  i t  may not. S t a f f  can keep the pa r t i es  apprised o f  the 
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status o f  t ha t  hearing. And i f  you get bored, you ' re  welcome 

t o  come and watch t h a t  hearing. 

MR. LACKEY: What k ind o f  a hearing i s  it? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I t ' s  a service standard 

complaint f i l e d  against Verizon. 

MR. LACKEY: I ' d  l i k e  t o  observe somebody e lse 

ge t t i ng  complained about. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: A show cause, ac tua l l y ,  I guess 

i s  what i t  was. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Commissioner, I j u s t  have one other 

t h i n g  i f  I may b r i n g  i t  up. I would l i k e  t o  ask or  c l a r i f y  

whether the S t a f f  intends t o  make an e x h i b i t  o f  the  deposi t ion 

t ranscr ip ts  t h a t  we're tak ing  i n  t h i s  case, as i s  commonly 

done. And I ' m  j u s t  curious, I mean, i f  t h a t ' s  going t o  be done 

on not.  

MS. HELTON: Right now, S t a f f  i s  planning on doing 

tha t .  

MR. LACKEY: And I ' v e  informed the S t a f f ,  and I 

assume t h a t ' s  why Ms. Summerlin asked the  question, t h a t  I 

intend t o  object  t o  t h a t  p rac t ice  i n  t h i s  case. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: You're going t o  - -  
MS. HELTON: Wa i t  a second because I d o n ' t  understand 

Mr. Lackey's object ion.  I thought the object ion was going t o  

go t o  us inc lud ing deposi t ion t ransc r ip t s  on ly  f o r  those 

BellSouth people who are t e s t i f y i n g  i n  the hearing and who are 
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deposed. 

MR. LACKEY: I intend t o  make an object ion t o  those 

port ions o f  t ha t  exh ib i t  t h a t  would be objectionable under l a w .  

I f  there 's  been a deposit ion taken o f  someone who's not subject 

t o  the j u r i s d i c t i o n  o f  t h i s  Commission, then I t h ink  t h a t ' s  an 

exception t o  the l a w  r e l a t i n g  t o  the use o f  depositions. But 

i f  you're going t o  dump the depositions i n  o f  the people who 

are witnesses t o  the proceeding, t h a t ' s  not a proper use o f  the 

depositions, and I intend t o  object a t  t h a t  time. I mean, I 

t h ink  tha t  - -  you know, we don ' t  - -  i t  i s n ' t  o f ten  done l i k e  

t h a t  around here. 

done, but t h i s  case has larger  impl icat ions than a l l  o f  tha t ,  

and I need t o  make sure the record stays as clean as I can make 

the record stay and t h a t  means adhering t o  the  l a w  on those 

points. 

I mean, we get a l i t t l e  loose about how i t ' s  

MS. SUMMERLIN: Commissioner, i f  I may. I D S  w i l l  

probably be f i l i n g  a motion t o  ask t h a t  BellSouth produce a l l  

o f  the witnesses t h a t  were deposed i n  t h i s  case as adverse 

witnesses, i f  they are not being promoted as a witness i n  t h i s  

case, f o r  the purpose o f  being able t o  get t h e i r  deposit ion 

t ranscr ip t  e i t he r  i n ,  i n  t h a t  way o r  ask the  questions again i f  

we have t o  a t  the  hearing. 

MR. LACKEY: I ' m  sorry, I don ' t  mean t o  drag t h i s  

out, but t h a t  doesn't make any sense. What I j u s t  said was, i f  

you've taken the deposit ion o f  somebody who's not subject t o  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

56 

the j u r i s d i c t i o n  o f  t h i s  Commission, somebody who i s  i n  

Vabama, then submitting tha t  deposit ion i n  l i e u  o f  t ha t  

person's l i v e  testimony, I believe, i s  an exception t o  the r u l e  

that  says you can ' t  use depositions. That 's when you do use 

it. What I was suggesting - - 
MS. HELTON: And - - 
MR. LACKEY: I'm sorry. 

MS. HELTON: And so those you w i l l  not object  t o  

S t a f f  having those inc  uded as exh ib i ts  i n  the proceeding. 

MR. LACKEY: To t h a t  extent, the only t h i n g  we w i l l  

object t o  i s  t o  the extent the deposit ion was taken and dur ing 

the deposit ion an object ion was made t o  the question o r  answer, 

de're going t o  have t o  resolve t h a t  object ion - -  
MS. HELTON: Which was only about h a l f  o f  the 

deposition - - 
MR. LACKEY: - -  but  w e ' l l  ce r ta in l y  not object  t o  the 

proper use o f  the deposition, which i s  when you can ' t  get 

j u r i s d i c t i o n  - - 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, Mr. Lackey, you c e r t a i n l y  

d i l l  be f ree  t o  make whatever objections - -  
MR. LACKEY: Sure. I understand. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: - - before anything goes i n t o  

the record. The only th ing  I would ask i s  t o  the extent t ha t  

you can a t  l eas t  advise S t a f f  exact ly  the subject matter o f  

those object ions so tha t  i t  would speed the process a t  the 
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hearing. 

MR. LACKEY: And, I mean, everybody i s  going t o  - - I 
ra ised t h i s  t h i s  morning w i th  S t a f f  so tha t  everybody would be 

on no t i ce  about t h i s .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And I appreciate i t  . 
MR. LACKEY: I ' m  not t r y i n g  t o  sandbag anybody on 

t h i s .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Yes. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Can I j u s t  make sure t h a t  I 

understand what has j u s t  t ranspired? BellSouth i s  not  going t o  

ob ject  t o  S t a f f  pu t t i ng  i n  the  deposit ion t ransc r ip t s  o f  a l l  o f  

the  people who were deposed who are not t e s t i f y i n g  i n  the  case 

as a formal BellSouth witness; i s  t h a t  correct? 

MR. LACKEY: I ' m  not  going t o  ob ject  t o  the  legal  use 

o f  the depositions other than t o  the extent t h a t  there were 

objections made dur ing the  deposit ion. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Okay. 

MR. LACKEY: They have t o  be resolved before i t  can 

go i n t o  the  record. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: That ' s  a yes, Mr. Lackey? 

MR. LACKEY: That ' s  t he  answer I j u s t  gave you. I 

th ink  i t  was p r e t t y  c lear .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: A l l  r i g h t .  So we come back a t  2:30? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We w i l l  come back no sooner 

than 2:30. I t ' s  my desi re  t h a t  perhaps t h a t  we can reconvene 
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a t  2:30. 

you as t o  my status as f a r  as the hearing t h a t  I w i l l  be 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g  i n .  So 2:30 i s  the ta rge t  time. 

I would suggest you be here. And S t a f f  can advise 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Okay. Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And w i t h  tha t ,  w e ' l l  stand i n  

recess u n t i l  t ha t  t ime o r  l a t e r .  

(Recess from 11:50 a.m. t o  4:OO p.m.1 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: C a l l  the  prehearing conference 

back t o  order. S t a f f ,  where do we stand? We have a l l  the 

issues resolved; r i g h t ?  

MS. HELTON: I wish I could say tha t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. 

MS. HELTON: We have made a good f a i t h  e f f o r t  and 

gone through a l l  o f  the  in te r rogator ies  and PODs t h a t  BellSouth 

l i s t e d  e a r l i e r  t h i s  morning, and there are s t i l l  some 

in te r rogator ies  f o r  which there i s  a d ispute over whether a 

response, an adequate response has been provided. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: What about PODs? 

MS. HELTON: PODs, there i s  - - the  one POD, which i s  

the one t h a t  asked f o r  a l l  the  documents t h a t  backs up a l l  t he  

in te r rogator ies ,  I c a l l  t h a t  k ind  o f  t he  f a l l o u t  POD, i f  

the re ' s  any in te r rogator ies  which you r u l e  are not - -  there 's  

not a responsive answer, then there may be some outstanding 

documents there, bu t  otherwise, I bel ieve t h a t  BellSouth i s  i n  

agreement tha t  the PODs have been answered. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we1 1. So how many 

interrogator ies do we need t o  review? 

MS. HELTON: Eighteen. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Eighteen. Okay. We can take 

;hem one by one. 

Mr. Lackey. 

MR. LACKEY: Yes, s i r .  Before I s t a r t ,  could I say 

;hat w i th  regard t o  a number o f  the PODs and a number o f  the  

interrogator ies tha t  are no longer i n  dispute, t he  reason they 

r e  not  i n  dispute - - 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: 

MR. LACKEY: Am I there? Okay. I ' m  sorry.  I saw 

Is your microphone working? 

;he green l i g h t  and thought I was on. 

Again, w i th  regard t o  a number o f  the  PODs and a 

lumber o f  the in te r rogator ies ,  the reason they ' re  no longer i n  

l ispute i s  t h a t  i t ' s  my understanding t h a t  Ms. Summerlin i s  

going t o  t e l l  us w i th  regard t o  those t h a t  I D S  has no documents 

:hat would be responsive. 

And w i th  regard t o  a t  l eas t  two o f  them, i t ' s  not  

i n l y  tha t  there were no documents, but  there was no informat ion 

;hat would al low customers t o  be i d e n t i f i e d ,  which, as I said  

Lhis morning, i s  a p e r f e c t l y  adequate answer f o r  me. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we1 1 . 
MR. LACKEY: Would you l i k e  me t o  go through those 

f i r s t ,  o r  how do you want t o  approach t h i s ?  
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: The ones t h a t  Ms. Summerlin i s  

going t o  provide you t h a t  information which you t h i n k  complies 

w i t h  your requirements, I don ' t  need t o  review those. 

MR. LACKEY: I ' m  sorry, what we had agreed t o  do, 

though, i s  we would do i t  on the record here. She would say 

there were no docs, no documents. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Oh, you j u s t  want t o  do i t  on 

the  record. 

w i th  you i n  wr i t ing.  No, we can get i t  on the  record here 

today. That 's  f i ne .  

I thought she was going t o  be f i l i n g  something 

MR. LACKEY: It j u s t  seems t o  me t h a t  i t ' s  waste o f  

t ime t o  have her submit another document i f  we can j u s t  say on 

the record which ones t h a t  there are no addi t ional  documents 

f o r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That 's  f i ne .  Please proceed 

w i th  tha t .  

MR. LACKEY: What I have i s ,  I have Number 65, 

Number 67, Number 81, Number 87, Number 88, Number 97, 

Number 98, Number 15, Numbers 29, 37, 34. And then PODs 7, 15, 

16, 17, 18, and 20. I t ' s  my understanding t h a t  w i t h  regard t o  

those in te r rogator ies  and PODs, i t ' s  I D S ' S  p o s i t i o n  t h a t  they 

have no responsive documents t o  those in te r roga to r ies  and PODs. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summer1 i n ,  do you agree 

d i t h  that? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: That ' s cor rec t .  
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Very we1 1. 

MR. LACKEY: And then w i t h  regard t o  55 and 56, i t  

d i d n ' t  ask f o r  documents. 

customers t h a t  were pol led,  and i t ' s  my understanding tha t  i t ' s  

I D S ' S  pos i t i on  t h a t  they have no informat ion t h a t  would a l low 

the  po l l ed  customers t o  be i d e n t i f i e d .  

It asked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  o f  

MS. SUMMERLIN: That ' s correct .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we1 1 . 
MR. LACKEY: And then from there,  we're on t o  the  

ones we have the  argument about. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: A l l  r i g h t .  

MR. LACKEY: What I ' d  l i k e  t o  do, I t h i n k  the most 

productive t h i n g  t o  do would be t o  look a t ,  f o r  instance, 

Number 10 and Number 5 go together. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: These are included i n  your 

August 22nd motion or  not? I j u s t  need a copy t o  work from. 

know t h a t  you had some informat ion attached. 

I 

MS. HELTON: Let me go make you a copy o f  t h i s  quick. 

I t ' s  the answers. I t h i n k  tha t  might help. 

MR. LACKEY: That 's  probably the  easiest  way t o  do 

it. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. We' l l  j u s t  - -  
MS. HELTON: We have no t  been able t o  locate our - - 

Bob - -  our f i r s t  supplemental - -  we have not  been able - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Bob, you need t o  make two 
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copies , okay? 

MS. HELTON: The f i r s t  supplemental answer t h a t  - -  I 
have the actual documents, but  f o r  some reason we have 

misplaced the l i s t  t h a t  goes t o  the questions. 

Do you have a copy o f  that  t h a t  we can - -  
MS. SUMMERLIN: Bel ieve i t  or  not,  I d o n ' t  t h i n k  I 

have t h a t  here. 

MS. HELTON: Okay. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: I ' v e  got a l o t  o f  other s t u f f ,  but  I 

th ink  Mr. Lackey said he had one. 

MS. HELTON: Do you have one t h a t ' s  no t  marked up, 

Mr. Lackey, t h a t  we could make a copy o f?  

MR. LACKEY: That 's what I ' m  look ing f o r  r i g h t  now. 

We want the f i r s t  supplemental answer, i s  t h a t  it? 

MS. HELTON: Yes. We have the actual documents t h a t  

were attached t o  tha t ,  but  f o r  some reason, the  l i s t  has been 

misplaced, or  not the l i s t ,  bu t  the  responsive answer. 

MR. LACKEY: We1 1, wouldn't  you know it, I got one 

mark on one answer. I mean, you are welcome t o  it. A l l  i t  

says i s  "no docs." 

MS. HELTON: Okay. 

(Discussion o f f  the record. 1 

MS. HELTON: Sorry, Commissioner Deason, we j u s t  

rea l ized tha t ,  f o r  some reason, we c a n ' t  loca te  t h a t  one 

document. 
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j u s t  stand i n  

11 work from tha t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. We'l l  go back on the 

record. Mr. Lackey, you may proceed item by i tem f o r  the 18 

in ter rogator ies which remain i n  dispute. 

MR. LACKEY: Thank you, s i r .  I th ink  the  place t o  

begin i s  w i t h  Interrogator ies 5 and 10 because they both 

impl icate the same issue. And i n  order t o  understand both o f  

them, you need t o  look a t  the one immediately p r i o r  t o  it. 

Inter rogatory  4 asks f o r  the i d e n t i t y  o f  the 1,400 business 

customers t h a t  Mr. Kramer t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  they l o s t  t o  BellSouth 

as a r e s u l t  o f  the bulk conversion issue. 

Number 10 addresses some testimony where Mr. Kramer 

said, during the two weeks fo l low ing  the bulk conversion, I D S  

l o s t  h a l f  o f  t h e i r  customers t o  BellSouth. They have given us 

a l i s t ,  o r  a l i s t  i s  a wrong way t o  put  it, they have given us 

a set o f  documents t h a t  contains phone numbers and what have 

you. There's no question about t h a t ,  and we haven't objected 

t o  Number 4. 

The problem i s ,  i s  t h a t  i n  Number 5, we asked them 

some fu r ther  questions, and they d i d  respond t h a t  they d i d  not 

know what the reason was why the  customer disconnected i n  

response t o  an interrogatory.  But we asked them what services 
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they had provided t o  the customer and what revenue they had 

received from the customer during the preceding s i x  months. 

The reason - -  and i f  y o u ' l l  look a t  Number 10, i t ' s  the same 

question essent ia l l y  w i t h  regard t o  the ha f o f  I D S  customers 

t h a t  were l o s t  during the f i r s t  two weeks n May o r  the two 

weeks fol lowing the bulk  conversion issue. That 's  why I ' m  

p u t t i n g  them together. 

The purpose o f  making the inqui ry ,  o f  course, i s  t h a t  

I D S  has asked tha t  the Commission order a refund o f  40 percent 

o f  the  money tha t  I D S  has paid t o  BellSouth over the past two 

years. Now, without regard t o  whether the Commission can do 

tha t  o r  not, we're e n t i t l e d  t o  t r y  t o  f i n d  out what the  damages 

are t h a t  I D S  could have possibly incurred as a r e s u l t  o f  l os ing  

these customers. And so, therefore, we asked what services d i d  

the customers have and what revenue d i d  you receive from them 

so t h a t  we could make such a calculat ion.  They d i d n ' t  produce 

any o f  t h a t  information. 

And when we were discussing i t  e a r l i e r ,  i t  wasn't a 

question t h a t  the informat ion doesn't ex i s t ,  i t ' s  t h a t  i t ' s  not  

compiled i n  one place, and they don ' t  intend t o  go seek out 

that  information f o r  the  customers who l e f t  them and came t o  

us. 

Now, I don ' t  see how they can poss ib ly  take t h a t  

pos i t ion when they ' re  asking f o r  damages from us as a r e s u l t  o f  

these actions. They are c la iming tha t  they were damaged 
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because we had a bu lk  conversion problem, 1,400 o f  t h e i r  

customers l e f t  them, they say, and came t o  BellSouth, they say, 

and t h a t  they l o s t  even more customers dur ing the  fo l low ing  two 

weeks. 

I f  we can ' t  f i n d  out what revenue they l o s t  from 

those customers, how can we possibly t e s t  t he  damages t h a t  

t hey ' re  claiming? It seems pe r fec t l y  re levant ,  p e r f e c t l y  

l og i ca l .  They can ' t  assert  t ha t  the in format ion doesn't  ex i s t .  

They j u s t  simply don ' t  want t o  go i n t o  t h e i r  records and get 

it, and we th ink  they ought t o  be required t o  do so. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Ms. Summer1 i n .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: Commissioner, I D S  produced the  1 i s t  

o f  the customers w i th  the  phone numbers. Mr. Lackey has 

pointed out t h a t  he d i d  receive tha t .  IDS has not  had - -  has 

no documentation t h a t  shows what services those customers had, 

what revenue i t  got from those customers f o r  t he  s i x  months 

p r i o r  t o  tha t  date. I D S  does not have t h i s  informat ion,  and 

tha t  i s  the on ly  t h i n g  - -  t he re ' s  nothing e l se  I can say. They 

don ' t  have t h i s  informat ion.  And I would po in t  - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let  me c l a r i f y .  Mr. Lackey i s  

saying you have it, i t ' s  j u s t  not  r e a d i l y  ava i lab le  f o r  you t o  

e a s i l y  put i t  i n t o  a repor t ,  and you ' re  saying t h a t  i t  does not  

ex i s t .  So I need t h a t  c l a r i f i e d .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: Let me c l a r i f y  i t  because what he 's  

saying i s  t h a t  i t ' s  e a s i l y  - -  o r ,  you know, t h a t  we're saying 
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i t ' s  not convenient. That 's not what we're saying a t  a l l .  

dhat we're saying i s ,  we don ' t  have the informat ion about each 

i f  these customers tha t  spel ls out what revenue they have. We 

j o n ' t  have - - I mean, I ' m  not saying t h a t  somewhere i f  you went 

to absolute extreme lengths you couldn ' t  f i n d  it. But the 

t ru th  o f  the matter i s ,  they don ' t  have tha t  informat ion i n  a 

nanner tha t  they can present i t  even t o  the Commission, period. 

mean, there's j u s t  no way. They don ' t  have the informat ion 

:ompiled i n  t h a t  way. They don ' t  have it, period. 

It doesn't mean tha t  i f  you spent, you know, 50 

ieople 's manhours f o r  s i x  months t h a t  you cou ldn ' t  der ive t h a t  

information. 

Somewhere a t  some cost, but I th ink  t h a t  the other po in t  t h a t ' s  

important t o  rea l i ze  i s ,  i s  t h a t  BellSouth has the informat ion 

i t s e l f .  I f  they bel ieve t h a t  t h i s  i s  such a c r i t i c a l  th ing ,  

they have those telephone numbers. They've got copies o f  every 

r d e r  . 

I ' m  not saying t h a t  i t  couldn ' t  be found 

I f  we had tha t  information, we would be producing it. 

de don ' t  have i t  compiled i n  the way t h a t  they ' re  asking. We 

l o n ' t  have i t  a t  a l l .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, l e t  me c l a r i f y  one th ing.  

4r. Lackey, I'll ask you t h i s .  You are seeking on a 

iy-customer basis the services t o  which they subscribed and the 

.evenues tha t  were derived from those services. 

MR. LACKEY: For the s i x  months preceding t h e i r  
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leaving I D S  and coming back t o  BellSouth, according t o  IDS,  

t h a t ' s  r i g h t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And t h a t  i s  because there i s  

t r i th in  the - -  I D S ' S  d i r e c t  case, there i s  the pos i t i on  t h a t  

there should be a 40 percent refund associated w i t h  those 

revenues? 

MR. LACKEY: Well - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: O r  which revenues? 

MR. LACKEY: Their  c la im i s  t h a t  because o f  a l l  the  

bad th ings tha t  we'd a l leged ly  done, they ' re  e n t i t l e d  t o  a 40 

percent rebate on what they paid us. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: What they pa id  you, not  on the  

revenues received. Okay. 

MR. LACKEY: What they pa id  us. And the  issue i s ,  

again, i s ,  they c la im t h a t  they l o s t  these 1,400 customers, and 

they c la im tha t  they came back t o  BellSouth, and therefore,  

they were deprived o f  the revenue from those 1,400 customers. 

4nd i t ' s  a p a r t  o f  t h e i r  damages. A l l  we're saying i s ,  we 

don ' t  be l ieve i t ' s  what you say i t  i s .  We don ' t  be l ieve t h a t  

your damages are what you claim them t o  be. Show us what you 

l o s t ,  and we c a n ' t  get  t h a t  informat ion.  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. You may proceed. Are 

you f i  n i  shed , Ms. Summer1 i n  , w i th  your response? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. You may proceed t o  your 
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next in ter rogatory ,  Mr. Lackey. 

MR. LACKEY: They're not  coming i n  q u i t e  the order 

you'd expect because we had them grouped. So i f  I can go - - 
the next one i s  39. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That ' s  f i ne .  

MR. LACKEY: I ' m  sorry,  I ' m  showing 39 t o  be a "no 

3oc." I must have made a mistake on t h a t  one. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So we can de le te  t h a t  from the 

l i s t ?  

MR. LACKEY: Yes. My notes - -  un 

nistake, my notes say tha t  Ms. Summerlin sa 

the on ly  document they had t h a t  was respons 

there were no other documents. 

ess I made a 

d t h a t  they gave us 

ve t o  tha t ,  t h a t  

MS. SUMMERLIN: I said  t h a t  my people sa id  t h a t  they 

lave used the  loss  reports,  and they don ' t  have any documents. 

MR. LACKEY: Okay. I ' m  sorry,  I j u s t  missed t h a t  

me. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. 

MR. LACKEY: For ty- three,  we - -  what t h i s  basica l y  

involves, i f  you look a t  M r .  Kramer's testimony, he was t a  k ing  

about the  enormous acqu is i t ion  costs f o r  customers, and t h a t  ' s 

?ea l l y  a p a r t  o f  t h e i r  damages, t h a t  they had incurred enormous 

acquis i t ion costs t o  obtain t h e i r  customers, and we had 

l a s i c a l l y  taken the customers from them. 

We asked them f o r  the  amount o f  the  acqu is i t i on  cost 
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and an explanation o f  how they calculated the amount. And we 

had nothing up u n t i l  today when Ms. Summerlin t e l l s  us tha t  the 

amount they've now determined i s  $83, but they cannot explain 

or  have not explained and have not provided us any information 

on how they calculated the $83. Today was the f i r s t  day we 

heard the $83, but we s t i l l  don ' t  know how i t  was calculated or  

compi 1 ed. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summer1 i n .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: The company had no documentation o f  

t ha t  - -  the der ivat ion o f  t h a t  $83. They only  found out - -  or  

had the information today when I ca l led  t o  t ry  t o  fo l low up on 

t h i s ,  but  they don ' t  have any documentation t h a t  spe l l s  out 

prec ise ly  where t h a t ' s  coming from. The response t h a t  I t r i e d  

t o  give Mr. Lackey e a r l i e r  today i s  t h a t  t h a t  covers - -  t h a t ' s  

a general f igure  t h a t  covers t h e i  r commi ss i  ons , bonuses, 

marketing costs, and the po in t  o f  sale costs. That 's  what I 

referred t o  e a r l i e r  w i t h  him, and the bottom l i n e  i s ,  they 

don ' t  have any documentation t h a t ' s  more o f  an analysis than 

tha t .  

MR. LACKEY: And i f  I may respond. That ' s  one o f  the 

in ter rogator ies tha t  d i d n ' t  c a l l  f o r  documentation. It d i d n ' t  

say, " I d e n t i f y  documents." It said, "Please s ta te  the  amount, 

and explain i n  de ta i l  how you calculated the amount." 

And what we have now i s ,  we have an amount, s t i l l  

don ' t  know how i t  was calculated. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. You may proceed t o  your 

iext  i tem. 

MR. LACKEY: That moves us t o  the  next l i s t ,  and we 

lave t o  back up t o  15. No, I ' m  sorry. 

MS. HELTON: Which - - 
MR. LACKEY: I now cannot read my own handwriting. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I t ' s  l a t e  i n  t h e  day. 

MR. LACKEY: F i f t een  i s  a no doc issue, I ' m  sorry. 

MS. HELTON: My notes show t h a t  Number 32 i s  your 

iext  one. 

MR. LACKEY: Yes, you're correct .  I apologize. 

-h i r ty - two.  Mr. Kramer a t  Page 54 o f  h i s  testimony, l e t  me be 

r e c i s e  about t h i s  because t h i s  i s  i n te res t i ng ,  I th ink ,  as 

in terest ing as anything can be a t  t h i s  po in t .  He says on Page 

i4, Line 10, "By January 8, 2001, I D S  had performed an aud i t , "  

;alking about the conversion, I th ink .  

So we said, provide us d e t a i l s  o f  how they - -  how you 

:onducted the audi t .  And the response we got back i s ,  we l l ,  i t  

iasn ' t  a formal aud i t  bu t  ra ther  a random aud i t  conducted, 

luote, on the f l y ,  close quote, i n  order t o  gauge and v e r i f y  

;hat the af fected orders - - we1 1, I d i d n ' t  ask whether i t  was a 

'ormal aud i t  o r  an o n - t h e - f l y  audi t .  I asked f o r  the d e t a i l s  

jbout how i t  was conducted, and I don ' t  have an answer, and I 

;till don ' t  have an answer. And i t ' s  not  dependent on any 

locuments. I t ' s  i n  M r .  Kramer's testimony, and he can explain, 
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presumably, t h i s  o n - t h e - f l y  aud i t  he d id .  But a t  t h i s  po in t  I 

have no answer whatsoever t o  expla in  t h a t  aud i t  . 
COMMISSIONER DEASON : Ms. Summerl i n .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: The answer t h a t  Mr. Lackey j u s t  read 

bas i ca l l y  t ha t  i t  was an o n - t h e - f l y  aud i t ,  t h a t ' s  the response 

o f  t he  company. They don ' t  have any d e t a i l s  beyond tha t  they 

j u s t  randomly ca l l ed  customers. They don ' t  have any precise 

descr ip t ion  o f  any formal audi t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we1 1 . Next item, 

M r .  Lackey. 

MR. LACKEY: Number 36. On Page 59 o f  h i s  testimony, 

Lines 16 and 17, Mr. Kramer s tates unequivocally, "BellSouth 

telemarketed every s ing le  one o f  my customers." So we asked 

f o r  the  fac ts  t h a t  supported h i s  conclusion t h a t  we had 

telemarketed every one o f  h i s  customers. And the  answer t h a t  

we got was, f i r s t ,  t h a t  they don ' t  have the  resources, then a 

comment about the  no t ice  o f  our Ful l  C i r c l e  program, win-back 

tariff and some fu r ther  discussion about t h a t  win-back tariff. 

But, I mean, my po in t  i s ,  they make the  c la im t h a t  they 

telemarketed every one o f  our customers. We asked them f o r  t he  

d e t a i l  o f  a l l  the  fac ts  support ing t h a t  statement, and what 

they gave i s  not responsive t o  it. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : Ms. Summerl i n .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: M r .  Lackey does not l i k e  the response 

t h a t  we gave. That does not mean t h a t  i t  wasn't responsive. 
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l e  gave the answer t h a t  was appropriate t o  t h a t  question, and 

there's nothing e lse t o  be given. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Next item, Mr. Lackey. 

MR. LACKEY: The next item i s  Number 40. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: 

MR. LACKEY: Forty. Okay. I D S  claimed t h a t  they 

I ' m  sorry, 40? 

los t  3,100 customers i n  the period November through February, 

qovember o f  2000 through February o f  2001. A l l  we d i d  was ask 

them how they calculated the 3,100 person f igure ,  customer 

Figure, and they haven't answered it. They make a reference t o  

i u r  loss reports. It says, "By using the monthly loss repor ts  

irovided by BellSouth, I D S  can create a spreadsheet which 

lep ic ts  the losses by month." Well, I mean, t h a t ' s  not  the  

question. 

I mean, the  question was, explain how you ca lcu lated 

that you l o s t  3,100 customers. And part o f  t he  problem we have 

iere i s ,  they have given us another f i gu re  on another document 

o f  3,600 customers. And so a l l  we're t ry ing t o  do i s  get t o  

the bottom o f  i t  and f i n d  out what the facts  are t h a t  under l ie  

t h e i r  claim; they haven't answered it. 

And we're going t o  come back t o  it, but we're going 

t o  have the same issue w i th  the 297 f i gu re  t h a t ' s  also 

implicated i n  t h a t  question, and i t ' s  going t o  have the  same 

issue on In ter rogatory  42 when we get t o  i t  where we asked them 

how he calculated the  10,000 access l i n e  f i gu re  on t h a t  Page 
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62. Those are a l l  numbers t h a t  he uses on h i s  page o f  h i s  

testimony. We asked him j u s t  t o  t e l l  us how d i d  you ca lcu late 

them, and we don ' t  have an answer. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summerlin. 

MS. SUMMERLIN: We went through a l l  o f  these 

questions, and some o f  the answers t h a t  I had were taken o f f  

w i t h  my colleague who has gone back t o  M i a m i .  But the bottom 

l i n e  i s  on 40, there was an answer t h a t  was provided t o  40, and 

there was a document t h a t ' s  re fe r red  t o  i n  a response t o  37, 

which i s  an Excel spreadsheet, and t h a t  i s  the answer t h a t  we 

had a t  t h a t  t ime t o  t h a t  question. I guess - -  wel l  - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Did you provide the 

spreadsheet? 

the 

ear 

may 

MS. SUMMERLIN: We prov 

second supplemental answer t o  

ded an Excel spreadsheet i n  

In te r rogatory  Number 37, and 

i e r  t h i s  afternoon, I pointed out 

g ive some help on t h a t  Number 40. 

MR. LACKEY: Well, i f  I cou 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We1 1 , 

question. That was i n  response t o  37 

spreadsheet provided f o r  In ter rogator ,  

t o  Mr. Lackey t h a t  t h a t  

d j u s t  - -  
j u s t  l e t  me ask a 

bu t  there was no 

40; correct? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: No, no. What we sa id i s ,  t he re ' s  no 

addi t ional  information. And I j u s t  t r i e d  t o  c l a r i f y  t ha t ,  as 

we had sa id e a r l i e r  today, instead o f  saying there 's  absolutely 

no document a t  a l l ,  i f  I D S  had presented informat ion t h a t  might 
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be responsive t o  something i n  another response, that I was 

t r y i n g  t o  po int  out t o  Mr. Lackey t h a t  i n  the response t o  

Number 37 t h a t  information might be helpful  f o r  t he  response t o  

Number 40. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Lackey. 

MR. LACKEY: I was j u s t  going t o  say t h a t  I don ' t  

th ink I ' m  e n t i t l e d  t o  he lpfu l  information. I t h i n k  I ' m  

e n t i t l e d  t o  know how they calculated the number t h a t  they put  

i n  the man's testimony t h a t  he's going t o  swear to .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. The next item. 

MR. LACKEY: The next one i s  48. For ty -e igh t  re fe rs  

t o  Page 65 o f  Mr. Kramer's testimony. And what h i s  statement 

says i s ,  "BellSouth has consis tent ly  changed LENS and i t s  other 

e lect ron ic  interfaces without adequate not ice t o  IDS. "  So I 

asked f o r  the facts  t o  support t ha t .  And I w i l l  t e l l  you, 

there's a reference i n  the  answer t o  a l e t t e r  from M r .  Thrasher 

(phonetic), Ms. Summerlin says, t h a t  they w i l l  f i nd  and produce 

that.  That 's not the dispute here. 

The par t  o f  the answer t h a t ' s  i n  dispute i s ,  they 

responded t o  my question about the  facts  t h a t  support the 

contention t h a t  Bel lSouth has consis tent ly  changed LENS without 

adequate no t ice  t o  I D S  w i t h  a sentence tha t  says, "On more than 

one occasion, BellSouth has made changes t o  LENS without the  

proper and t ime ly  not ice t o  I D S . "  A l l  they d i d  was rephrase 

the testimony. They d i d n ' t  g ive me a l i s t  o f  times when we 
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:hanged LENS and d i d n ' t  g ive  them not ice  or  anything. They 

j u s t  sa id  what they sa id i n  the testimony again. It cannot 

3ossibly be an adequate answer. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON : Ms. Summer1 i n .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: I D S  has documented every t ime t h a t  

3ellSouth has not  given them not ice,  and they d o n ' t  have any 

answer t h a t ' s  more s p e c i f i c  than the  one they gave. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Lackey, i f  there  i s  - -  i f  

IDS has no more s p e c i f i c  informat ion than what they have 

provided, what do you expect them t o  provide? 

MR. LACKEY: I f  t h e i r  answer i s ,  i s  t h a t  we have no 

documents and we have no informat ion t h a t  would a l low us t o  

come up w i t h  a spec i f i c  date on which t h i s  occurred, then I ' m  

sorry, I mean, I c a n ' t  do anything more than t h a t ,  I guess. 

But t h a t ' s  not  what they said. They b a s i c a l l y  said,  oh, i t ' s  

happened on more than one occasion. They c a n ' t  remember a 

s ing le occasion, c a n ' t  i d e n t i f y  any o f  them, apparently. 

j u s t  doesn't seem l o g i c a l  t o  me. 

It 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, Ms. Summerlin, can you 

c l a r i f y  f o r  the  record here exac t ly  what your response i s ?  

MS. SUMMERLIN: The response i s  j u s t  as Mr. Lackey 

has read it, t h a t  on various occasions BellSouth has f a i l e d  t o  

n o t i f y  I D S  o f  changes i n  LENS. And i f  we had s p e c i f i c  

occasions t h a t  they had documented, we would be producing it. 

They don ' t  have it. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: So you have no spec i f i c  

information on what the changes were o r  when they were 

imp1 emented? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: That 's r i g h t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. The next item, 

Mr. Lackey. 

MR. LACKEY: I bel ieve t h a t  car r ies  us back t o  6, 

s t a r t i n g  over again. Again, we're r e f e r r i n g  d i r e c t l y  w i t h  the 

testimony o f  Mr. Kramer t h a t  t a l k s  about most customers c a l l i n g  

BellSouth f o r  help. We asked him t o  i d e n t i f y  the  customers 

t h a t  I D S  contends s tar ted c a l l i n g  BellSouth. And the answer, 

i f  you have the f i r s t  set  there, i s  j u s t  - - i t  ' s  not 

responsive. 

I mean, i t ' s  j u s t  a general statement t h a t  says, 

"Customers tha t  were on resale and were converted t o  UNE-P were 

not the  main concern now as much as the new customers being 

converted from BST r e t a i l  t o  I D S ' S  UNE-P. 

UNE-P conversion customers, when experiencing the  conversion 

re la ted  disrupt ions,  contacted BellSouth t o  f i n d  out what the  

problem was. I' 

I n  p a r t i c u l a r ,  the  

I mean, a l l  t hey ' re  doing i s  repeating the testimony 

back t o  me. And what I want t o  know i s ,  how do they know tha t?  

I mean, how can they make t h a t  statement i f  they don ' t  have any 

fac ts  t h a t  they can t u r n  t o  t o  support tha t?  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: What type information do you 
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t h ink  would be responsive, Mr. Lackey? 

MR. LACKEY: Well, I assume what they would have i s ,  

they would have customer service records from t h e i r  customers. 

These started out as resale customers t h a t  were converted t o  

UNE-P; t ha t  i s ,  they were already IDS customers, and they went 

through a conversion process t o  change them from resale t o  

UNE-P. They have got a customer service record on them as 

resale customers, and one would th ink  t h a t  i f  they ca l l ed  up 

and said, you know, we had a problem, we c a l l e d  Be lSouth, 

anything l i k e  t h a t  would be noted there. 

And, again, i f  they have nothing, i f  they have 

nothing, then o f  course t h a t ' s  an answer. 

statement i s  not based on any facts ,  they can say tha t ,  but ,  I 

mean, i f  they are going t o  say it, they ' re  going t o  have t o  

t e l l  me what facts  i t ' s  based on. 

I mean, i f  the 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summer1 i n ,  what fac ts  

are - -  i s  your c l i e n t  r e l y i n g  t o  make the statement i n  the 

tes t  i mony? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Well, I th ink  t h a t  from the response 

t h a t ' s  provided, i t ' s  very c lear  t h a t  I D S  has no spec i f i c  l i s t  

o f  every s ingle,  each and every customer t h a t  ever ca l l ed  

BellSouth f o r  help. This was a statement i n  h i s  testimony t h a t  

das based on general experience. There's a l o t  o f  questions 

that have been asked by BellSouth i n  t h i s  ser ies t h a t  you ' re  

l i s ten ing  t o  r i g h t  now t h a t  are statements t h a t  were made based 
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on the general experience o f  the i nd i v idua l .  There i s  not some 

documentation t h a t  says, these are a l l  the customers t h a t  ever 

ca l led  BellSouth f o r  help. 

The bottom l i n e  i s ,  some documents might have been 

noted, but i f  they - -  the point  i s ,  there have been customer 

records tha t  have been produced i n  other responses t o  discovery 

t h a t  t a l k  about a l l  o f  the issues i n  t h i s  case. And they might 

have possibly some notat ion here o r  there, but as f a r  as a 

del ineat ion o f  every s ingle customer, IDS never kept t h a t  k ind  

o f  documentation. They don ' t  know every customer t h a t  ever 

ca l led  BellSouth f o r  help. They don ' t  know every d e t a i l  o f  

every s ing le inc ident  t ha t  might have occurred. 

Basical ly,  BellSouth's request says, " I d e n t i f y  each 

and every customer I D S  contends s ta r ted  c a l l i n g  BellSouth f o r  

help." That would be impossible; i t  i s  impossible f o r  IDS.  

They have t r i e d  t o  produce some documents here t h a t  are noted, 

l e t t e r s  from Bud Higdon sent v i a  e-mail  t o  Petra Pryor, the  

l e t t e r  from Glen Es te l l  t o  Joe Mi l ls tone,  the l e t t e r  from 

June 8 th  l e t t e r  from Petra Pryor t o  Ke i th  Kramer, i n  an attempt 

t o  show the fac ts  t h a t  they base t h a t  statement on. And t h a t ' s  

the best they can do. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: The next item, Mr. Lackey. 

MR. LACKEY: Yes, s i r .  Number 9. This one b a s i c a l l y  

goes back t o  the one I was t a l k i n g  about, 5 and 10, where we 

said, " I d e n t i f y  the customers." This i s  the one where he 
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testified that during the two weeks following the bulk 
conversion issue, they lost half their customers. And we 
basically said, "Identify the customers you lost." And what 
they did was, they referred us back to what they had produced 
in response to Interrogatory Number 5 and Interrogatory Number 
4. And those are big documents. But, I mean, they are just a 
list of phone numbers. 

And, for instance, on Number 5, which is one of the 
ones they referred us to, it's supposed to be half their 
customers. And thing at the top of it says, of the original 
2,464 TNs, telephone numbers, listed on the bulk order, 
379 cannot be found in IDS billing, 889 are currently 
disconnected from - -  in IDS billing, 1,199 are currently active 
in IDS billing. And, I mean, you know, all I did was ask them 
who they lost, and I got numbers and nothing that identifies 
them and nothing that responds to the question about who they 
lost. 

I mean, our position is, they didn't lose these 
customers to us. And, you know, if I don't get some 
information that says who they were and where they went, I'm 
going to have a bit of trouble figuring out how I'm going to 
respond to it and rebut it. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summer1 in. 
MS. SUMMERLIN: We've produced, as Mr. Lackey pointed 

out, this exhibit in response to Interrogatory Number 5. That 
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was an e f f o r t  t o  give i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  t o  customers involved i n  

the bulk  order ing f iasco, and t h a t  i s  a l l  IDS  has. There i s  

nothing t h a t ' s  more spec i f i c  t h a t  sets out everything j u s t  as 

Mr. Lackey would have it. I mean, i f  we had i t , we would be 

producing i t . We don ' t  have anything beyond t h a t  response. 

MR. LACKEY: Can I say one more th ing ,  please. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Sure. 

MR. LACKEY: I mean, i t ' s  inconceivable t h a t  they 

I mean, wouldn't have a record o f  the customers they l o s t .  

they had them. They were t h e i r  customers. They were paying 

them presumably f o r  t h e i r  service. And dur ing a two-week 

period, he says h a l f  o f  them went away, and they can ' t  t e l l  us 

vJho the h a l f  were t h a t  went away. I ' m  sorry,  I j u s t  cannot 

bel i eve t h a t  answer i s responsi ve. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summerlin, there  are no 

customer records? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Commissioner, I t h i n k  t h a t  the  bottom 

l i n e  here i s  t h a t  t he re ' s  an awful l o t  o f  s t u f f  t h a t  i t  would 

be very good t o  have f o r  any company a t  t h i s  p o i n t  i n  time. 

3ut the t r u t h  o f  the matter i s ,  the  informat ion t h a t  I D S  has a t  

t h i s  po in t  i s  pu t  i n t o  t h i s  document here. 

telephone numbers o f  customers involved i n  the  bulk order 

problem. They do not  have any per fec t  compi lat ion o f  every 

customer t h a t  they l o s t  a t  t h i s  po in t  i n  time, and I d o n ' t  

foresee them ever being able t o  create t h a t .  And I t h i n k  t h a t  

It l i s t s  the  
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there will be issues that will be brought up at this hearing 
that will clarify why maybe they don't have that information. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Lackey, your next item. 
MR. LACKEY: The next one is 18. It relates 

specifically to Page 35 of Mr. Kramer's testimony where he is 
reporting that in the latter part of August, IDS experienced a 
dramatic i ncrease in the number of customers bei ng di sconnected 
without the corresponding new connection, and then he 
specifically refers to this. "On many occasions, a BellSouth 
technician would appear on the premises of a newly-acquired IDS 
customer and the technician would tell the customer that he was 
there to disconnect the customer's services." That's not an 
unambiguous statement. I mean, that ' s pretty clear. 

So we said, tell us who. And basically, the first 
thing we got was, is that every time there was a truck roll it 
happened. And then we got a series of - - we1 1 , it was 19 

missed appointments. 
that had 19 missed appointments that were supposedly responsive 
to this. Some of those dockets indicated that there was no 
access; that is, the tech went to the house, and there was 
nobody there. So how could that possibly be evidence that our 
technician told the customer that he was there to disconnect 
thei r service? 

It was just a 1 ist of 19 - - or documents 

The point of the matter is, they made a specific 
allegation, our technicians were telling customers this, and 
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de're e i ther  e n t i t l e d  t o  have them say, we have no evidence o f  

that ,  or  here's the evidence o f  it, and we don ' t  have i t  a t  

t h i s  po int .  I mean, i t ' s  a p r e t t y  serious a l l ega t ion  not  t o  

have any evidence on. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summer1 i n .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: I D S  provided a l l  t he  missed 

appointment documentation t h a t  i t  has. Some o f  them may 

include s i tuat ions where there was no access. 

i d e n t i f y  a customer f o r  whom tha t  k ind o f  event occurred a t  a 

d i f f e r e n t  occasion. One o f  the things t h a t  M r .  Lackey i s  

po int ing out i s  t h a t  the answer was, every t ime there 's  a t ruck  

r o l l ,  meaning somebody from BellSouth was sent t o  one o f  I D S ' S  

customers. IDS asked BellSouth f o r  records o f  a l l  the t ruck  

r o l l s  t h a t  BellSouth performed f o r  IDS. The reason we asked 

tha t  i s  t h a t  I D S  doesn't have t h a t  information. 

It may s t i l l  

The simple f a c t  i s ,  although th ings might be ideal  t o  

have, and ce r ta in l y  i n  t h i s  s i t ua t i on  i t  would be very ideal  

f o r  IDS t o  have it, they don ' t  have it. And i t ' s  not  t h a t  they 

are t r y i n g  t o  h id ing i t  o r  not producing it, they don ' t  have 

it. And BellSouth has ind icated t o  I D S  t h a t  i t  w 11 be 

producing a CD ROM w i t h  a l l  those t ruck  r o l l s  on t, and then 

i n  t u r n  we w i l l  both able t o  i d e n t i f y  - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: I ' m  a l i t t l e  confused. How i s  

i t  t h a t  you're r e l y i n g  on an assert ion i n  your d i r e c t  

testimony, and you're saying t h a t  you're r e l y i n g  on something 
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from BellSouth t h a t  BellSouth has not ye t  provided t o  you? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: No, I ' m  not saying t h a t .  What I ' m  

saying i s ,  IDS does not have documentation o f  every instance 

when t h i s  type o f  experience occurred. 

t h a t  was from general knowledge. 

pa r t i cu la r  place i n  a p a r t i c u l a r  log.  They produced the missed 

I t ' s ,  again, something 

It was not w r i t t e n  down i n  a 

ntment documentation they had. What I am merely po in t i ng  

s t h a t  i t ' s  fu r ther  proof t h a t  IDS d i d n ' t  have the t ruck  

informat ion because we asked BellSouth t o  produce it. We 

t have it. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I understand. Any response, 

MR. LACKEY: Only t h a t  the  man said i n  h i s  testimony, 

were saying t h i s ,  and we say prove it. Give us 

us the documents, and they go, you know where 

are. The t ruck  r o l l  i s n ' t  going t o  show what 

d o r  what the technic ian said. You know, i f  we 

Mr. Lackey? 

are going t o  defend ourselves against t h i s  a l lega t ion ,  we have 

got t o  have some speci f ics .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Your next item. 

MR. LACKEY: I t ' s  23. This one's - -  i t ' s  Line 18 on 

'age 23 where M r .  Kramer says t h a t  approximately 50 percent o f  

IDS conversion orders were having problems. We asked him t o  

2xplain how they calculated it. The answer was, f o r  every two 

Drders t h a t  were submitted, one would have a problem e i the r  

our techni c i  ans 

the fac ts ,  give 

the t ruck  r o l l s  

the customer sa 
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dur ing conversion or not being able t o  get past the  

prov is ion ing process a t  a l l .  

And we asked f o r  an explanation i n  d e t a i l ,  and the  

answer I got was, we l l ,  f o r  every two orders we submitted, one 

d i d n ' t  work. That 's  50 percent. I don ' t  t h ink  t h a t  i s  a 

sa t i s fac to ry  response when we asked f o r  an explanation o f  a 

f i gu re  and asked f o r  some d e t a i l  about it. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summer1 i n .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: Commissioner, the  response t h a t  was 

given was what IDS had. And I t h i n k  t h a t  Mr. Kramer's 

testimony was a statement from h i s  experience. It was not  

necessari ly based on a precise document o r  ca lcu la t ion .  

a general statement o f  the  experience t h a t  IDS was having a t  

the time, and i f  we had any fu r the r  proof  o f  t ha t ,  we would be 

producing i t  . 

It was 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: M r .  Lackey, what you are 

seeking? Counsel has j u s t  ind ica ted  t h a t  i t ' s  a statement 

based upon experience, and the re ' s  nothing tha t  they have t o  

substantiate tha t .  

MR. LACKEY: I f  t h a t  were the  answer t h a t  was given 

i n  the  response t o  the  in te r rogatory ,  I th ink  I would have no 

object ion t o  t h a t  answer. 

object  t o  t h a t  answer i f  t h a t ' s  what they said. 

I don ' t  t h i n k  I ' d  have a c la im t o  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summerlin, i s  t h a t  your 

answer? Or d i d  I mischaracterize it? 
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MS. SUMMERLIN: That 's the answer, yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. I t h i n k  we have 

e l  i m i  nated one. 

MR. LACKEY: The next ones are 30 and 31, and they 

r e a l l y  work together. And t h i s  i s  another one where Mr. Kramer 

r o l l e d  out a couple o f  numbers: 1,100 customers as i t  re fer red  

t o  i n  30; and 297, not 296 or  298, but 297 customers are 

refer red t o  i n  31. And we j u s t  said, explain i n  d e t a i l  where 

you got these numbers from and how you calculated them. And, 

you know, the answer they gave us, "The ca lcu la t ion  i s  e a s i l y  

ar r ived a t  through BellSouth's own loss repor ts  provided t o  

IDS. One can compare the customers whose orders were submitted 

t o  BellSouth, and l a t e r  cancelled," and so fo r th .  

You know, i f  they had made the  ca lcu la t ion  o f  1,100, 

which they obviously did,  i t ' s  a n ice round f igure ,  1,100, and 

they made the ca lcu la t ion  o f  297, which i s  a very precise 

f igure,  i t  seems l i k e  t o  me we're e n t i t l e d  t o  know how they 

calculated those two numbers. Can they r e p l i c a t e  them? 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summer1 i n .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: Commissioner, I t h i n k  Mr. Lackey j u s t  

said tha t  there 's  an explanation provided, t h a t  you look a t  the 

loss reports. That was the response t h a t  the company gave o f  

how tha t  ca lcu la t ion  was done. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, the  question wasn't where 

do you look; the question was, how d i d  you ca lcu late it? 
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MS. SUMMERLIN: The question was, how d i d  you 

zalculate i t? We looked a t  the loss reports and calculated i t  

that way. I mean, that ' s  a response t o  the question. 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. So the response was you 

1 ooked a t  w h a t  reports? 
MS. SUMMERLIN: The loss reports, L - 0 - S - S .  Those are 

reports t h a t  are issued by BellSouth. 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: So you looked a t  the loss 

reports t o  determine those numbers, and i t  should be readily 
apparent from those loss reports how you derived the 1,100 and 

the 297? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: Tha t ' s  my understanding o f  what  our 
answer i s ,  yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I s  i t  readily determined from 
those reports, Mr. Lackey? Or do you know? 

MR. LACKEY: I cannot answer t h a t  question because I 
d o n ' t  know which loss reports we're t a l k i n g  about. I mean, i t  

doesn't say i n  the answer, so I can't - -  I just can't answer 
t h a t  question. I d o n ' t  know. We haven't obviously been able 
t o  do i t  up t o  this poin t .  

we would have obviously said so. 
I f  we've been able t o  replicate i t ,  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: All right. Your next item. 
MR. LACKEY: The next one i s  42, and I t h i n k  I 

already covered 42 when I talked t o  40. So t h a t  means we can 
skip t o  52. Okay. Now, this one i s  an interesting one. On 
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Page 70, Lines 6 through - -  7 through 11, they say t h a t  we 

should be sanctioned w i t h  severe penal t ies f o r  i t s  

ant icompet i t ive a c t i v i t i e s  which have resul ted i n  serious 

damages t o  I D S  and t o  I D S  customers and t o  the  development o f  

competition. So we said, please i temize w i t h  p a r t i c u l a r i t y  

each and every one o f  the serious damages al leged on Page 7, 

and f o r  each such damage, please set f o r t h  the monetary amount 

o f  such damage and explain i n  d e t a i l  how i t  was calculated. 

And they gave us an answer t h a t  d i d n ' t  have any 

monetary f igures a t  a l l  attached t o  it. The S t a f f  dur ing our 

discussions pointed out t ha t ,  wel l  , you know, i t  doesn't  say on 

Page 70, Lines 7 through 11 t h a t  they were ta lk ing  about 

monetary damages, bu t  my response i s ,  they sa id they suffered 

serious damages. We said, i d e n t i f y  the damages and set  f o r t h  

the monetary amount f o r  each damage. 

Now, i f  t h e i r  answer i s ,  there a r e n ' t  any, I ' m  okay 

A t h  tha t .  But i f  they ' re  going t o  c la im any monetary damages 

as a r e s u l t  o f  those acts, i t  seems l i k e  t o  me I ' m  e n t i t  ed t o  

have them lay i t  out and expla in  f o r  us how they a r r i ved  a t  it. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Ms. Summer1 i n .  

MS. SUMMERLIN: Commissioner, I D S  i s  not  here a t  t h i s  

zommission t o  get monetary damages i n  the normal sense o f  t h a t  

term. 

provided i n  Bob Hacker's testimony, h i s  rebu t ta l  testimony, an 

i x p l  anation f o r  the way IDS calculated t h a t  amount. 

IDS has requested a 40 percent refund, and we have 
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I f  t h i s  were a U.S. D i s t r i c t  Court where we were 

i ea l i ng  w i th  a forum t h a t  could provide monetary damages, then 

de would be having t o  put on a case o f  t h a t  so r t .  What I D S  has 

t r i e d  t o  do i s  t o  discuss the types o f  damages i n  terms o f ,  

there's no way t o  ca lcu late what the monetary value i s  o f  a 

neputation damage. And we're c e r t a i n l y  not - -  by not being 

j b le  t o  provide a monetary amount f o r  every damage, we are 

:er ta inly not saying there a r e n ' t  damages. There are serious 

lamages. 

some precise fashion. And I t h ink  t h a t  we have provided a 

thorough explanation o f  where the 40 percent f i g u r e  has come 

from i n  Mr. Hacker's rebut ta l  testimony. 

I t ' s  not j u s t  something t h a t  you can ca lcu late i n  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Any fu r ther  comments, 

4r. Lackey? 

MR. LACKEY: Just only t o  note again t h a t  I agree 

that the Commission can ' t  award damages, bu t  t o  the extent, 

they're asking f o r  t h a t  refund, and i t ' s  predicated upon these 

cinds o f  actions, i t  seems l i k e  t o  me we're e n t i t l e d  t o  know 

Mhat they claim t h e i r  damages are from these types o f  act ions 

i n  order t o  see whether there 's  any re la t i onsh ip  between what 

they're claiming and what they ac tua l l y  suffered. 

I f  they suffered $10 worth o f  damage and want 

$100 m i l l i o n  worth o f  rebates, t h a t  doesn't s t r i k e  me as being 

very l o g i c a l .  You know, we need t o  be able t o  see what t h e i r  

damages are, what they claim t h e i r  damages are i n  order t o  
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?valuate the meri ts o f  the r e s t  o f  t h e i r  case f o r  the rebate. 

1 don ' t  see how anybody i s  going t o  be able t o  make a judgment 

3n the merits o f  t h a t  claim without knowing what the damages 

we.  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Your next i t em,  your next item. 

MR. LACKEY: F i f t y - e i g h t .  And ac tua l l y ,  58 i s  

another one where - - t h i s  was i n  Mr. H a m i l  t o n ' s  testimony about 

the technician disconnecting the l i n e s .  The f i r s t  one we 

talked about was i n  M r .  Kramer's testimony where he sa id t h a t  

our technicians went out t o  the customer's premises and t o l d  

them t h a t  they were there t o  disconnect the l i nes .  This i s  the  

same issue. I t ' s  i n  M r .  Hamilton's testimony. So t h i s  one 

d i l l  go w i th  the e a r l i e r  one whose number you would probably 

1 i ke me t o  give you. 

Let me j u s t  - -  i t ' s  the same po in t .  He says i n  h i s  

testimony, "We r o l l  ed techni c i  ans. The technicians to1 d the  

customer tha t  they were there t o  disconnect t h e i r  service.' '  

And we've asked them, you know, who are you t a l k i n g  about? 

What technicians? What customers? And we're ge t t i ng  an answer 

tha t ,  you know, i s n ' t  responsive. 

each and every t ruck  r o l l  issue, which i s  p a r t  o f  the  answer 

they gave us i n  response t o  58. 

I mean, they ' re  back t o  the  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we l l .  I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  f i n d  

the number. 

MR. LACKEY: I'll go back and f i n d  it. I ' m  sorry,  I 
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should know it. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I s  i t  18? 

MR. LACKEY: I bel ieve t h a t  was it, but l e t  me look. 

s i r ,  i t ' s  18. Mr. Kramer's 58 i s  i n  Mr. Hamilton's 

mony. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Do you have anything t o  add t o  

tha t ,  Ms. Summer1 i n ?  

MS. SUMMERLIN : Commi ss i  oner , I a1 ready t a l  ked about 

the f a c t  t h a t  we've produced a l l  the missed appointment 

we can information t h a t  we had, and t h a t  i s  as responsive as 

be. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Lackey, you are a 

t o  16, how many more do you have? 

MR. LACKEY: I bel ieve t h a t ' s  a c t u a l l y  it. 

most up 

MS. HELTON: I bel ieve I miscounted, which i s  why I ' m  

a lawyer and not  an accountant. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. 

MR. LACKEY: And t h a t ' s  why I ' m  f o o l i s h  because I 

took her word f o r  i t  instead o f  counting i t  myself. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. A l l  r i g h t .  I ' m  not  

I w i l l  going t o  make a r u l i n g  s i t t i n g  here t h i s  afternoon. 

take t h i s  under advisement. I w i l l  confer w i t h  S t a f f .  I 

ant ic ipate making a r u l i n g  quickly.  

I f  the  pa r t i es  wish, I can hear fu r the r  argument on 

the question o f  having supplemental testimony f i l e d ,  but  I 
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th ink  i t  i s  k ind  o f  dependent upon the status t h a t  I give t o  

these outstanding discovery disputes. 

MR. LACKEY: The on ly  t h i n g  I would add t o  t h a t  i s ,  

they d i d  i n  f a c t  respond t o  some o f  the  in te r rogator ies  i n  the 

September 6 th  response, and we have some th ings we would l i k e  

t o  say about tha t .  So the supplemental testimony issue does i n  

f a c t  e x i s t  i r respec t ive  o f  your - - 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Even based upon the  

supplemental - - 
MR. LACKEY: I was i n  e r ro r  e a r l i e r  t h i s  morning when 

I said  t h a t  I thought i t  would depend on what you d i d  w i t h  

these because I had forgot ten t h a t  there were some responses 

tha t  were made on the 6th. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And, Ms. Summerlin, I take i t  

your pos i t i on  i s  bas i ca l l y  t he  same? 

MS. SUMMERLIN: We c e r t a i n l y  need t o  look a t  the  

responses Bel 1 South has provided, d e f i  n i  t e l  y. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. S t a f f ,  i s  there anything 

fur ther  t h a t  you need t o  b r i ng  f o r t h  a t  t h i s  time? 

MS. HELTON: Not t h a t  we're aware o f .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. I appreciate a l l  o f  the 

I a r t i e s '  hard work and e f f o r t s  i n  t h i s  extended per iod we're i n  

3 preheari ng conference, but  hopeful 1 y i t  w i  11 fac i  1 i t a t e  

natters i n  the long run. 

quickly. 

I w i l l  t r y  t o  be making a decis ion 

I may ask S t a f f  t o  r e l a y  t h a t  t o  you ve rba l l y  o r  by 
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fax or  something before an actual order i s  entered. 

Do the par t ies  have anything else a t  t h i s  po in t?  

Very we1 1 . Thi s preheari ng conference i s adjourned. 

(Prehearing concluded a t  4:53 p.m.) 
- - - - -  
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